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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayorand Members ol lhe
[runicipal Assembly

It4unicipality of San Sebastidn, Puerto Bico

We have audited lhe accompanying linancial statements ol the govenmenlal activities, lhe business-tlpe activjties,
each major fund, and the aggregale remaining fund inlormation oj l,lunicipality of San Sebastiin, pueno Bico, as
of and for lhe year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comp se lhe lrunicipality of San Sebastidn, puerto
Rico's basic rinancial statemenls as listed in the table o, contenls. These linancial statements are the responsibility ol
lrunicipality ol San Sebastidn, Puerlo Rico's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial stalements based on our audit.

We conducled our audil in accordance with audiling slandards generally accepted in ihe United Slates of America
and the standards applicable lo linancial audits conlained in Govemnent Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compiroller General ol the Uniled Slates. Those standards require that we plan and perlom the audii to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether lhe linancial statements are lree ol material misstalement. An audii includes
examining, on a tesl basis, evidence supporting the amounls and disclosures in ihe financial stalements, assessing
lhe accounling pfinciples used and the signiricant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
linancial statement presentalion. We believe that our audil provides a reasonable basis lor ouropinions.

ln our opinion, lhe linancial stalements relerred to above present faidy, in all mateial respects, the respective
financial position ol lhe govemmenlal activilies, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregale
remaining lund infomation of the Municipality ol San Sebastidn, Pueno Rico, as ol June 30, 2012, and the respeclive
changes in linancial position and, where applicable, cash llows thereof lor the year then ended in conlormity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Staies olAmeica.

ln accodance with Goyerrynent Auditing Standads, we have also issued our reporl dated January 28, 2013, on our
consideralion ol the Municipality of San Sebasliin, Puerlo Rico's internal control over financial repoding and on our
lesls of its compliance wilh cerlain provisions ol laws, regulations, contracls, and grant agreements and other
matte6. The pumose ol that report is to describe the scope ol our tesling ol intemal conirol over financial reporting
and compliance and lhe results of that lesling, and not lo provide an opinion on intemal contrcl over linancial
repofting or on compliance. That report is an inlegral part o, an audil pedormed in accordance wilh Govennent
Audling Slandatds and should be considered in assessing the results ol our audit.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(coNlNUED)

Accounting pinciples generally accepted in lhe united states of America require that the management,s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison inlofination on pages 3 through 13 and 55 thrcugh 56 be presented to
supplemenl lhe basic financial statements. such inlormation, although nol a part ol the basicJinancial siatements, is
required by the Govenmental Accounting standards Board, who considers it to be an essential pa( of finan;ial
reporling for placing ihe basic financial slatemenls in an appropdale operational, economic, or historical context. we
have applied cerlain limited procedures lo the required supplementary inlormation in accordance wilh auditing
slandards generally accepted in the united slates ol Ameica, which consisted of inquides ol management abod th;
methods of preparing the information and comparing the inlormation for consistency with manageme0t,s responses
to our inquiries, lhe basic linancial slatemenls, and other knowledge we oblained during our audit o, the basic
financial statements. we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the informition because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence io express an opinion orprovide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the pupose of forming opinions on the linancial stalements that collectively comp se
the ltlunicipality ol San Sebastien, Puerlo Bico's linancial siatements as a whote. The accompanying schedule ol
expendilures ofrederalawads on page 57 is presented for purposes o, additional analysis as required by U.S. Oflice
of l\.lanagemenl and Budgel Ciculat A133, Audits of States, Local Govennents, and Non-prolit Oryanizations, and
is nol a required pan ol the financial statements. The schedule of expendilures of lederal awards js the responsibilily
of management and was derived lrom and relates direclly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare lhe linancial slatemenls. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
ol the linancial statemenls and certain addilional procedures, including compadng and reconciling such infomation
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used lo prepare the linancial stalements or lo the financial
statements lhemselves, and olher additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
lhe United States ol Amedca. ln out opinion, the inlormation is fairly stated, in all malerial respecls, in relalion to lhe
linancaal stalements as a whole.

---,\
,/) / .,,

>1=a* _ /n--. t L..
/-/

/ROIVAN TOBO & CO., CONTADORES
PUBLICOS AUTORIZADOS, CSP

LICENSE *35.IN FORCE

Yauco, Puerto Rico

January 28, 2013

Stamp #E46224 was aflixed lo
the odginalof this reporl

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP CeftAed Publit Arcauntants and Business Co s bants
PoBOX3043 YAUCO PR 00698 3Ul . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAx:(787) 856.6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
IiIUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEsASNAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

The managemenl ol Municipality ol San Sebastian, Puerto Rico (Municipality) offers this narralive overview and analysis ol
the-linancial activities ol the Municipalily lor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The lllanagement's Discussion and Analysis
([ID&A) is designed io focus on the current yeal aclivilies, resulting changes and currently known lacts, and much ol lhe
information is comparable lo prior year. This [,4D&A should be read in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial
slalemenls and the accompanylng notes to lhose financial statements.

The new Ieporting model required by Govemmental Accounling Slandards Board Statement No. 34 was implemented during
fiscal 2003'2004. Tlis MD&A is prcpared in order io comply with such pronouncement and, among olher purposes, to providi
the linancial statements users with the following major inlormation:

. a broaderbasis in focusing imporlant issues;. acknowledgemenl ol an overview oflhe Municipality's financial activities;

' providelor an evalualion ol its financial condilion as or lhe end ol lhe indicated liscalyear, compared with pdoryear results;. identi,ication of uses ollunds in the financing ollhe ll,lunicipality's variely ol activities and;r assess managemenl's abilityto handle budgelary funclions.

GOVERNIIENTAL ACTIVITIES - FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The lollowing are key financial highlights forlhe liscalyear:

. The lt4unicipality's assets exceeded its liabililies at June 30, 2012 by $45,189,327, and at June 30, 201 1 by g40,196,426, as
reslaledl. The lrunicipality's totalnet assets increase by $4,992,901dudng fiscalyeat 2011-2012;. As of June 30,2012, lhe Municipality's govemmental lunds repoded combined ending fund balance ol $13,862,36j, a
decrease of $859,0141r0m lhe prior year;. AtJune 30,2012,ihe Slalemenl ol Nel Assel presented an unrest cted deficit ol95,297,832;

' The ltlunicipality's capital assels inventory increase as a result ol this yeals operations. Capital assels as ol June 30, 2012
were $54,068,322 (net ol accumulated depreciation);. The inveslmenl in capilalassets lor this year was $38,921,322 (net of related debt);. Loans principal payments were $2,115,000 and $1,330,000in 2012 and 20j 1, respectively.

BUSII{ESS.WPE ACTIVITIES -FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The loialnet assets ol ihe propietary fund amounted to $1,072,965, ofwhich 9368,486 are invested jn capitalassets, net ol
related debt, while $538,376 are restricled forthe operations ol federallyfunded programs.. The total net assels ol the propietary lund increased by $61,195 durng the liscalyear ended on June 30, 2012.

OVEFVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction lo lhe ltlunicipality's linancial statements. The
l\,iunicipality's basic linancial stalements compise three componenlsi govemmenlwide iinancial statements; fund financial
statements; and notes to the linancial stalements. This repod also contains olher supplementary inlomalion in addition to the
basic,inancial statemenls themselves.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cedirted pubtic Accou\tants an l Busikess Cons ttants
PO BOX 3043 YAUCO pR M698 3013 . TEL (787) 8s6 6220 FAX: (787) 856-6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANOANALYSIS(CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The govemmenlwide linancial statemenls are composed ol: (1) the statement ol net assets and (2) the slalement o, activities.
These financial slatemenls can be lound immediately following this MD&A. These linancial statements are desig0ed lo provide
readers wilh a broad overyiew of the Municipality's finances, in a manner similarto a p vate-sector business.

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The pumose ol the statemenl of net assets is lo atlempl to report all assels owned and all liabililies owed by the Municipality.
The Municipality reporls ol all ol iis assels when it acquircs ownership over lhe assels and reports all ol its liabitiljes whe;
they are incu(ed. For example, the l,4unicipalily reports buildings and inlrastructure as assets, even lhough they are not
avaihble to pay the obligations incured by the Municipality. 0n the other hand, the Municipalily repods liabilities, such as
claims and iudgments, bonds and notes payable, obligations under capilal leases, compensaied absences and cerlain
accounls payable and accrued liabilities, even though lhese liabililies mighl not be paid until several fiscal yearc into the
fuiure

The ditlerence between lhe Municipality's tolal assets and tolal liabilities reported in lhe slalement ol net assets is presented
as net assets, which is similar to the lotal owners' equity reported by a commercial enlepise in ils linancial stalements.
Although the purpose of lhe Municipality is not lo accumulate nel assels, as this amount increases or decrcases over time,
such amounl represenls a useful indicator ol wheiher the linancial posilion of the Municipality is eilher improving or
deterioraling, respectively.

STATEMETIT OF ACTIVITIES

The statement of activities presents inlomalion showing how the l\,lunicipalily's nel assets changed during the fiscalyear
ended June 30, 2012, by presenting all ol the Municipality's revenues and expenses. As previously discussed, the items
reported in the statement of aciivities are measured in a manner similar to the approach used by a commercial entepdse in
that revenues are recognized when eamed or eslablished criteria are salislied, and expenses are recorded when incurred by
ihe Municipality. Consequently, revenues are reported even when they may not be collected lor several months after lhe end
oflhe liscalye and expenses are recorded even lhough they may not have used cash dudng the currenl year.

Alihough lhe stalemenl ol activities lool(s diflerent rrom a commercial enlerprise's income slalement, lhe ditlerence is only in
fomat, nol subsiance. Whereas lhe botlom line in a commercial enlepise represents iis net income, the ll,4unicipality reports
an amount descdbed as nel change in net assels, which is essenlially the same concept.

The locus of the slatement ol activities is on lhe nel cost of various activities provided by the Municipalily. The statement
begins with a column lhal identilies the cost of each ol the Municipality's major lunctions. Anolher column identilies the
revenues lhat are specilically related to the classified governmental lunctions. The dillerence between the expenses and
revenues related to specific lunclions/programs identifies the extenl lo which each function o, the i,lunicipality draws lrom
generalrevenues orisse -financing through fees, intergovemmental aid, and olher sources ol resources.

This slatemenl also presents a compaison between direct expenses and program revenues lor each funclion of the
Municapality.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ceiilied Public Accountans and Business Consutta s
PO BOX 3043 yAUCO pR 00698 3043 . TEL (787) 856.622A FAX: (787) 856-6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

Ii,IANAGEMENT,S DISCUSSIoN AND ANALYSIS (coNTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

G0vERNMEt{T.WDE FtNAI{C|AL STATEtitEt{TS (CONTTNUED)

Both of lhe governmenl-wide financial staiemenls of the ltlunicipality are principally supported by taxes and intergovemmental
revenues. The Municipalily's activities include; general govemment, public safety, publii works, culture, recreatio-n, health and
wellare, and interests.Propedy taxes, volume of business taxes, sales taxes, and stale and lederalgrants linance most oflhese
activities.

FUI{D FII'IANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Municipality's lund linancial statements consist of: (1) the batance sheet - govemmentat iunds, (2) the stalement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmenlal lunds, (3) the statement ol nel asseis - proprietary fund,
(4) the stalement of revenues, expenses and changes in lund net assels - prop etary fund, and (5) lhe stalement oi cash flows
- proprietary fund.These linancial statements reporl the linancial posilion, lhe results of operations and cash flows ol the
l\,lunicipality's govemmental and proprietary lunds, with an emphasis on the Muoicipality's m;jor governmental and proprietary
lunds.

A fund is a grouping ol relaled accounts lhat is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
aclivities or objectives. The Municipality, like mosl other state and local governments, uses lund accouitinig to ensuie and
demoflslrale compliance with finance-related legal requiremenls. Each fund is considered an independ;nt ,iscal entity
accounted lorwilhin a set ol self-balancing accounls thal compise ils assets, liabilities, lund equily, revenue, and expenditurei
Fund accounting segregates funds according to lheir iniended purpose and is used to aid management an demonstrating
compliance with legal. financial and conlractual provisions.

GOVERN[IENTAL FUNDS

The [,lunicipality's basic services are reported in lhe governmenl lund financial stalemenls. The govemmenl funds are
reported using an accounling melhod called modified a$rual accounling, which measures cash and a[ other ljnancialasseis
thal can readily be converted inlo cash. Govemmenlal lunds are used to account lor essenlially lhe same lunctions repoded
as govemmental aclivilies in the govemment-wide financial slalemenls. However, unlike the govemment-wide linancial
statements, govemmental lund financial stalements locus on near-lem inflows and outflo$/s ol spendable resources, as well
as on balances ol spendable resources available at ihe end of the fiscalyear. Such infomation may be uselul in evalualing a
government's nearlerm linancing requirements. Because the locus ol govemmenlal funds is narrower than that ol lhe
government-wide financial statements, il is uselul lo compare the inlomalion ptesented for govemmental lunds wiih similar
inlormalion presenled for govemmental activities in the govemment-wide linancial slateme;ts. By doing so, readeE may
betler understand the long-term impact ollhe government's near-term linancing decisions.

The lllunicipality adopts an annual appropiated budgel for ils general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided forthe geneclfund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

PROPFIETARY FUND

Tie ffopdelary lund is a fund used to report the linancial posilion, results of operation and cash llows of Villa Soigal (project
No. 63-29-665705492,01 -3), is a housing devetopment consisting of 120 dwelling units located in San Sebastian.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP CeniJied Public AccauntaAts and Business Consuhd ts
POROX3US YAUCO pR 00698 3043 . TEL. (787) 8s6 6220 FAX: (787)8s6 6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2012

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PBOPRIETARY FUND (CO}ITINUEDI

The proje_ct is_ol/n€d by the Municipalily, but its operalions are ca ed out by a private management agent unrelated to ihe
fi,lunicipality The housing development project of Villas Soigal has been designed to assist va-rious segirents ol lhe general
public in obtaining adEuate and reasonable pdced rental housing. The project operates under financirig through the Section
8 New Conslruction and Substanlial Rehabililalion Program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Ub;n Devllopment and
the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Plogram of lhe U.S. Departmeni ol Agdculture. the punose ol Villas Soigat is
to provide adequate housing to low-income residenls oflhe l\,lunicipality.

The activities of Villas Soigal have been reporled as a proprietary lund in the accompanying basic linancial staiements since
GAAP pemits ihe use of enlerprise funds lo repod any activity lor which a fee is charged lo extemal users of goods or
services, regardless of whelher the govemmenl intends to lully recover the cost ol the goods or services provided. Thus, it is
common to use propielary lund repo ng to account lor servaces where lhe governmenl intends lo recover only a portion of
its costs through fees or use.charges.

Proprietarylunds provide the same type olinformation as the GWFS, but in more detail.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes provide additional inlormation that is essenlial io a full understanding ol the data provided in the govemment-wide
and lund linancial slatemenls.

OTHER INFORMATION

ln addition 1o the basic linancial statements and accompanying noles, this repod also presents cedain tequired supplementary
inlomation coniaining budgetto actual comparisons for the generaland maior lunds.

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Ceiirted Pubtic Accountdnx and Business Consuhants
POBOX3U3 YAUCO pR 00698 3U3 . TEL. (787) 8s6 6220 FAX: (787) 856-6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERIO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30,2012

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

GOVERNIIENTAL NET ASSETS

As noted eadier, nel assets may serye ovel time as a useful indicator ol a govemment's linancial posilion. ln the case ol the
Municipality, govemmental aclivilies assets exceeded liabititiesby $45,189,317 as ol June 30, 20j2, versus $40,.tg6,426 as ol
Jun-e.3o, 2011, as restated, and business-type activities assets exceeded liabililies by 91,072,96s as of June 30, 2012, ve6us
$1,011,20 as ol June 30, 201r. our anarysis below focuses on lhe net assets (T;bb r) and changes in net assets of the
Municipality's govemmental activities and business-type aclivities.
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COIiIMONWEALTTI OF PUERTO BICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS(CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

G0vERN[,lENT.W0E FrNAI'rC|AL ANALYSTS (CONTTNUEO)

The largest porlion of lhe l\4unicipalily's net assets reflecls its investment in capital assets (e.9. land, buildings, machinery and
equipmenl), less any related debt used to acquire lhose assels still outslanding. These capilal assets are used to provide

services to citizens; consequenlly these assels are nol available for luture spending. lt should also be noted lhal lhe resources

required to repay lhe related debt must be provided lrom olher sources, since lhe capital assets lhemselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabiliiies.An additional portion of lhe Municipality's nei assets represents resources that are subject to extemal
reslictions on howlhey may be used.

GOVERNIiIENTAI- ACTIVITIES

Govemmental activities increased the l\,lunicipality's net assets. Key elements of this ancrease are as follows: the l\,lunicipality's
govemmental aclivilies had net expenses of $13,379,466. However, these services are intended to be primarily lunded by

iaxes, as opposed to charges lor services and grants, and those laxes and olher general revenues exceed nel expenses by

$4,992,901. ln addition, business-lipe aclivilies increased the Municipality's nel assets by $61,195.

The cost ot all govemmental aclivilies and business-type aclivilies this yearwas $27,868,930 and $565,854, respectively. Table
2 presents the cosl ol each ofthe lt4unicipality's largest programs.
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1,343y'78

3,480,357
1,560,460
7,942212

883,157

26J85,246

3.n4.1N
36,972,236

505,79
60,075

565,854

61,195
1,011,770

I1,07286t

$ 20,6€t,3a0
?$.n1

6,N71*
1,8,40202
2,195,810

688,132

690,978
435,073

33,,138,880

8,613,M6
9,40,695

8,575,857
1,47i,368
7,372,081

505,779

28lg.1U

5,054,096
41208,196

-!.@-

$ 17,534,992 $ 6P,24
7f6.742

6,070,049
1,850$09
2,118.114

,137,089

,100,931 3,275
571,81,t 1,560

29,809,,1i16 627,049

520,336
69 256

31,0l1,20

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenifed Public Accauntants and Business Co sultants
Po Box 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3U3 . TEL. (787 ) 856-6220 FAX: (787) 8s6-623J



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAI'I SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS(CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2012 Revenues
r Glanls and contributions

a Charges for services

! Property taxes

I Municipal license tax

r Sales and use tax

! Olher local taxes

! lnterest and investnenl eamings

Lr Misceilaneous

2012 Expenditures

r General govemment

r Public safely

rJ Public wod(s

E Culture and recrealion

. Health and wellare

il Public Housing and Welfare

v lnterest on long-tem debts

ROMAN TORO & CO-, CSP Cenfied Public Acco ntants and Business Consuka ts
PO BOX 3013 YAUCO PR 00698-3U3 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: (787) 856-6233



COMIIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED}

Approximately thirty-three percenl (33%) ol the Municipality's govemmental activities and business-type aclivilies total revenue
came from taxes, while sixty'two percenl (62%) resulted ,rom grants and contributions. Federal grants represent nineleen
percent (197") of the [,lunicipalily granls revenues. The Municipality's govemmental activities ani business-type aclivities
expenses included items such as general govemmenl, public salety, public wofts, culture and recreation, health ind welfare,
public housing and wellare, and interest on long term debts.

Approximaielylhidy percent (307") ol total expenses resulted irom general govenment, ihirty percent (30%) lrom pubtic works,
live percent (5%)f.om culture and recrealion andlwenty-six percent (26%)lrom health and welfire.

GOVERNMENT FUND FINANCIAL AI'IALYSIS

As noted earlier, the lrunicipality uses lund accounting lo ensure and demonsirale compliance wilh finance-relaled legal
requirements.

E&&!
Babr6 StE€l

Tohl assels - [raF Funds
Tohl asts - Ot'er Funds

Iorrr riabirities - i,hE Funds
Total liabitities - Oher Funds

Colnbhed lola tund bahncas

Tobl lirbiliri€s and lud bahlE

2!11
?j12 las restat€dl 25,000,000 

-

$ 18,044,620

4,386,236

3 22,430,856

$ 7.102.5?1

8,568,495

11,,(14,737

503,647
1.923,9Tt

13,862,36J

l ??4!!s_

$ 17,197,409
4,000,073

4 21,1E7,&

$ 5,217,741

6,476,107

12,536,m6

584,956
J,600,213

14T21,375

3 2r,197it2

20 000 000

15,000,0m

r0,000,000

5,000,m0

0

.n12

.2011

ToralAssels Totat TotalFund
Liabililies Batances

The focus ol lhe Municipality's govemmenlal funds is to provide inlormation on near-tem inllows, outflows, and balances ol
spendable resources. Such infomation is uselul in assessing the Municipality's linancing requiremenls. ln particular, unreserved
lund balance may serve as a uselulmeasure ol a govemment's nel resources availablelor spending a he end of its tiscalyear.
Al June 30, 2012, the l\4unicipality's governmental funds repoded combined ending lund balances of g13,862,361, a dec;ase
ol $859,0141r0m the p oryear.

The Municipalily has an unassigned lund balance of $1 ,923,977 in its General Fund. The remainder ol the balance is assigned
and reslicled to indicate that it is nol available for new spending because it has already been committed; (a) to liqujdate; or
y-ear obligalions ($372,547) and otherc (9131,100), (b) to pay debt service (92,575,11i) and (c) for olher 

'restrbted 
purposes

($8,859,626).

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Cedified Pubtic Acco ntants and Business Consuttants 10
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

GOVERNMENT FUND FINANCIALANATYSIS(CONTINUED)

NEE-{
2!12 2!1!Chrrms h Fuftl Bshn@s

Tohl Ev€nues - Maior Funds
Tobl rcvenues - OtB Funds

cofibhed rohl E!€nues

Tob expendituEs - Maior Funds
Tcnal e&enditur€s - OtEr Funds

Cmbin€d iola ependillEs

ot'er rnancirg sur@s {uses):
Oher iiaan.ing surc€s - [hio. Fhds
OUr€r I nancing sou@s - Odlel Funds

Cmbhed ofier fnancing srces

Nel danges ln lund baiance

Fund Bahnca belinninq, as rcsrated

$ 26,219,s09 $ ?2,328326
6,123,213 7,480,510

32,342,722 29,809,436

24,665,881 20555,m
6,78,06s

33,201,736 27,33f,2g9

3,045,000

30,0@,000

25,000,000

20,000.000

15,000,000

10,m0,000

5,000.000

0

-5,000.000

(8s9,014

14,721,375

I r3,862J61

5,521,138

3 14,721375

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

At June 30,2012, the totalassets ol propdelary lund amounted to $1,979,576, which consisted p ncipally ol: (t ) restdcted cash
in commercialbanks ol $538,376, and (2) capilal assets ol$1,267,874, net ol accumulaled deprecialion.

Al June 30, 2012, the total liabilities of the proprietary fund amounted to $906,611, which consisted pdncipally ol: (1) modgage
notes payable ol$857,709, and (2)accounts payable and accrued liabilities 0fg35,385.

The tolal nei assels of proprietary fund amounted to $1,072,965 ai June 30, 2012, of which 9368,496 are invesled in capital
assels, and $538,376 are reserved for program activilies.

ROMAN TORO &CO., CSPCe iJied Public Accountants and Business Cons banrr 11
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO
MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSTO AND ANALYStS (CONTTNUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2012

BUDGETABY HIGHLIGHTS

Budget and actual lompaison-schedules are provided in lhe Basic Financial Statementslor the Generat Fund. The Budgetary
Comparison Schedule of the General Fund shows the odginal adopted budgels, the iinal revised budget, aclual resulli, and
variance belween the linal budgel ard actual resulls lor the general and major special revenue lunds.T;bb 5 summarizes the
resulls of the General Fund's Budgetary Comparisonschedule:

Toial rcvenues

Total expendilures, encumbtances and
olher linancing uses

Exceas or deficiency

$ 15.0€,886 $ 14,650,808 $(393,078)

15.0€.886 14.501.321 542.565

$ 1{9.{gZ t1l9.4nz

The o ginal and the final budgel ol the ceneral Fund lor the fiscalyear ended June 30, 2012 amounled to g 13,990,426 and
$15,043,886, Iespectively. Over the course of lhe liscal year, the Municipality revised the General Fund's budget in order to
include increases and decreases in revenues thal were ide0tilied during the couFe of the liscal year based on cunenl
developmenls lhat positively affecled lhe lt4unicipality's linances. The laws and regulations of the Commonweallh mandate a
balanced budgel.

The tolal actual revenues (budgetary basis) ol the general lund lor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were g14,6s0,808,
which is approximately twopercent (27"), or $(393,078)less than the budgeted revenues. ln addition, the total actual
expenditures and olher linancjng sources (budgetary basis) ol the general lund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 were
$14,501,321, which is approximately lour percent (4%), or g542,565tess than the budgeted expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADIIINISTRATION

The [,lunicipality's inveslment in capilal assets lor its governmental type activities as of June 30,20j2 amounted to
$54,068,322(nel of accumulated depreciation). This investmenl in capilal assets includes land, buildings, improvements,
iurniture and fixtures, vehicles and equipment, and infraslruclure. The lotal increase in the Municipality's investment in capital
assets for the currenl fiscalyear was $3,247,409. Table 6 present the majorclasses of capitalassels.

Table 6
Capital Assets Amount

Construction in proqress

Land

Buildings and building improvements
Fumiture and fixtures
Vehicles and equipment
lnlraslructu re

Total Assets

$ s,295,782
5,737,776

29,316,005
536,610
893,361

12.288,788

$31,008322

ROMAN TORO & CO.,
PO BOX 3013 YAUCO PR

CSP Ceftifred Public Accountants and Business Consultants
00698.3043 . TEL (787)856-6220 FM: (787) 856-6233
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COMMOI{WEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIOTI ANO ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAH ENDED JUNE 30,2012

LONG.TEBM DEBT

AtJune 30, 2012, lhe Municipality had lotal of 925,060,465 in general obtigaiions and others outstanding debts, as shown in
Table 7 ol this amounl, 917,157,000 comprises debr backed by rhe lull laith and credit ol the govemme-nt ana bz,gos,aos is
olher obligations.

Table 7

Lorq Term Debts Amount

General obligalions bonds and notes
Olhels

Tolal Long Term Debts

$17,r57,000
6.103.465

$23260.465

The ltlunicipality is requiled lo limil the amount ol general obligalion debl to 1070 ol the total assessment of property located
wilhin lhe Municipality in orderlor the bonds to be repaid wilh the proceeds of property taxes resticted lor debt'servic;s. Olher
obligations include accrued vacation and sick leave and advances o, property taxes. More detailed inlormaiion aboul the
lllunicipality's long-term liabililies is presenled in lhe nolesto lhe linancial stalements. The Municipalily continues to meet its
financial needs through prudent use ol its revenues and creative debt financing programs.

ECONOMIC FACTOBS AND NEXTYEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

Local, nationaland international economic lactors influence the l\y'unicipality's revenues. Posilive economic groMh is correlaled
wilh increased Ievenues from property taxes, volume ol business taxes, sales taxes, charges for servjces, is well as state and
lederal granls. Economic groMh in the local economy may be measured by a va.iety ol indicatoE such as employment groMh,
unemploymenl, new construclion, assessed valuation, and olher revenues.

All of lhese facto6 were considered in prepaing lhe l\,lunicipality's budget for the 2012 fiscal year. Some cost reductions helped
lund improvements ol existing lacilities, public salety and works, economic development initiatives and human seryice
improvements.

REOUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This linancial leport is designed to provide a general oveNiew of ihe l[,lunicipality's linances lor all those with an interest in lhe
government's iinances. Questions concerning any olthe inlormalion provided in this report or requesls lor addilional inlomation
contact the l,,lunicipality's Finance Depadment at (787)896-i550.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenife.l Pubtic Accou tants an.l Bt$iness Consuttatts 13
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Commonwealth of Puerto Bico

Municipality oI San Sebastian

Slatement ol Net Assets

ASSETS:

Cash and iNestmenls
Cash wlh liscal agenl

Renl, licenses and p€mits

lntergovenmenlal

lnlel€sl, lines and Penallie6
Federdl ganls

OlheE

Capihl assels:

land, impovemenh, and conslruclion in pogress

Olher capilal assels, nel ol deplecialion

Tolal capihl ass€ts

TOTAL ASSETS

LAEILMES:

Accounls payable and accrued liabililies

8on& and notes Payable

Due lo qovemmenlai unils

Delercd rEvenues:

Municipal license lares

Fedsralg6nls

Long.lem liabililies:

Due wilfin one year

Due in mo€ lhan one Year

IoTAL u B[mEs

NET ASSETS

lrwested in capital assels, net ol rclaled d€bl

Debt seryice

Olhel pulpo6es

unresrdcled (deficil)

TOTAL I{ET ASSETS

11,918,392

7,603,396

106,692

330,034

212.711

943,727

202335
200,785

7,838

21,616,710

11,033,558

43,034,764

54,068322

75.685.0i12

1,888,957

1,025,000

413,425

2,363,134

1,374,679

170,M5

1,452,194

21,798,271

3lt.{95,705

38,921.322

2,575,111

8,990,726

(5,297,832)

I 4s.l$,327

The noles lo lhe linancial stalemenls are an lnlegral pan ol tlis stalemenl'

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP CerliJied PubliL Accountants a d Business Co sultants

Po BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698'3013 TEL (787) 856'6220 FAx: (787)856'6233
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Commonwealth of Puerto Bico

Municipality ol San Sebastian

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30

PbsumilE!!!L-
op€hting Capit l

Ch,lgoltol CBrb and GnnL.nd tlet(EaFrce)

FuncrioErPloonm Expem€. Sa;ic CoItib{tions Codibuiids RemE

s9s'8r/ (895'877)

g 7$,231 -!_ n4!_ _!__!gg!_ t (13J7e,466)

8,613,046 $ 51,538 $

9,o,695

8,575,857

1J71,368

$ $ (8.561508)

7.372,057 691.693

71,U2

514,49 3,736,539

221,fi2 2,650,000

5,153,s64 1 ,368296

(868,853)

{4,294,S!8)

1,4{0,194

(r58,534)

$ 6,207,154

1,8,10,202

2,195,810

688,132

6,319343

6S7,703

433.523

18.372.367

1,992,91'1

,().196.,126

l 4uElz

Torel @snment.l acriviriB 3 27,468,910

Gra aln co.mdtu$ nol Btlct diosPd'fcprcgahs

lnlerc$ and hwstn.ni oamhgts

Nei ass.ls - beginhg{s reslaM

The noles loihe liranc a slalemenls ale an integla!pai oilh6 slaiement.

ROMAN TORO & Co., CSP Cenilied Publit Accou,ltants a d Business Consultants

Po BOX 3a$ YALIC} PR 00698'3013 ' TEL. (787) 8s6'6220 FAX: 1787) 856-6213
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Commonwealth ol Puedo Rico

tilunicipality of San S€bastian

Balance Sheet

Govemmental Funds

tlead Slad

Debl 00|sr

180336

4,863

Total
stare Assignment- stal. Assignnenl '
Public Wo s rnd Recrealion

Renl licenses and pemih

lnlerEst, Iines and penall es

Oihem

Liabilities and Fund Ealances

Liabililies:

Bonds and noies paFble

oue lo golemmenhl unils

Munic pal license laxes

Renl, licen ses an d Pemils
lnteresl lines and Penaliies

Tolal I abiliries

Unassign€d

Total liabilities and lund balance3

5263.581 $

3m,142

212,711
667,364

202,335

2,161

t 7,224054

11,918,392

7,@3,396

196,692

330,834

212711

943,727

2A2,95
2@,785

7,838

248,316 $ 2,672,510 $ 2,616 $ $ - $ 3,731369 $

3,e3,623 3,679,I/3

67 221

22692

129.471

182 558 93.805

2A 449

808
24A392

$0,874 i 2,672,510 S 23,873 t {,013,536 i 3,679,7133 4,386,236

814146

3 22,(10,856

424,216 $

2,363,134

246,392

1,374,679

308,142

13,511

r97,456

430,874 $ $ 251,718 $

30.101

758 804 $

537125

1,888,957

1,025000

413425

2,363,134

814,146

1,374,679

308,142

13,5r1

197,456

$ 23,345 $

r 025,0@

413,425

528

2672.510

2,612,510 ?.515J11 3,397,9v 2,920,262 13,862,361

2.575,111 3,397,954 2J89,162
131,100

11,4U,137

503,647

1,923,977
372,547

1,923,977

2,236.524

170045 170.045

4,927 530 430 874 23,873 1,438,425 281819 1,465,974 8'568495

Ihe noles lo lhe lnancial slatemenls are an integral pad ol this slalenenl

ROMAN TORO & CO , CSP Cenified Public Accounnnts asd Business Consultatts

PO BOx3043 vAUCo PR 00698'304J ' TEL. (787 ) 8566220 FAx: (787)856 6233
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Commonx,ealth of Puerto Rico

MuniciPalilY of San Sebastian

Statement oi Revenue3, Expendilures and Changes in Fund Balances

For rhe Ye.r Ended June m,2012

Head Stld Debl Servi.e

$ 1,532,572 $

694,503

Other

$ 5,899,012

1,W,Nz
2,195,810

743,231

6,380,718

13,685,358

68t,132
490,247

420.012

Municipal lic.n* hxes

_ Charys for seruic8s

- lnle@sl, fnes and pemllies

Tohl€wnues

- Generalg@mmenl

htercsl and oher cha€es

Toral €penditu€s

$ 4,366,4.40

1,8/0,2U2

743,231

6.319,843

688132
481,S33

2,650,000

1,501,307

3 426 886

978,976

7.059

3736,539

3622.532

2,953S32

2.953.840

211

722

8,467,950

809,162

2,633,905

11A,5n
336,2,!6

708,133

2.964

1 941 395

5,463

71,864

1,501,692

121,120

3,496,928

3338,188

a,4163n
8€1,026

7,758,429

178,5r1

457,966

7,158,901

5,279,583

2,115,m0
895,877

Ex@$ (deicienc9 ol revenues o€r
(undei ependllures 1 sr6,835 113 707 2 650 000 (782,s55)

1,164,197

(1,944.359) 12.412,6421 (859.014)

1 164197

Toral o$er fn sources fus.s)

N6t change in tund balanc€s 381.d2 (1,944,3s9) 12 412.642)

\(q$v? The noles lolhe linanc a slalemenls are an rnlegraLpad ol this statemenl.

17
ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cetified Public A.countants and Businets Consultants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

RECONCILIATION OFTHE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOB THE FISCAL YEAF ENDED JUNE 30' 2012

TOTAL FUND BALANCES -GOVEBNiTENTAL FUNDS............... ...........'............... ......

Amounts reporled tor Governmenial Aclivities in the Statement of Nel Assels are ditlerent because:

Capilal Assets used in governmenlal aclivilies are nol financial lesources and therefore, ale

nol reported in the lunds. ln lhe culrcnl pe od, these amounls are:

$ 13,862,361

Non Depreciable Capilal 4sseis .. ..... ... .. ... ... ... .

Depreciable CapitalAssels . ... ..... ... ... . ........ ..

Accumulaled Deprecialion

Tolal Capital Assets . ...

Some olthe Municipality's revenues tl/illbe collected afteryearend, but not available soon

enough to pay for culrenl period's expenditure and lherelore, are delered in lhe funds "

Some liabililies are nol due and payable in the current peiod and lherelole, are noi Ieported

in thelunds. Those liabilties consist ol:

General Bonds and Notes Payab|e .. .. ... ... ... .. .

Compensated Absences.

Property Tax Debl - Law 42. ...... .. .... ....... .. ..

Plopedy Tax Debl - Law 146.. . .............. .......

Claims and Judgments ..

SlateHealthlnsuranceAdministration ..... .. .. ...
Landlill Closure and Post-Clcsules Costs . ....... .

TotalLong-Term 1iabi|ities .. ....... ... .. ....... .. ..

TOTAL NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMET{TAL ACT|V|T|ES............................ ............... ....

$11,033,558
62,160,776

(19.126.012)

54,068,322

s19,109

(17,157,000)

(2,727,913)
(936,834)

(1sl,354)
(1,800,000)

{256,266)
(231.0981

(23.260.465)

$45J!9327

See accompanying Notes lo Basic Financial Statements

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ceniled Public Accountants and Business Co'tsultants

PoROX3013 YAIJC} PR 00698;A4l ' TEL. ( 787 ) 856'6220 FAX: (787)856-6233

18



COMIi,TONWEALTH OF PUEBTO BICO

li'tUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

BECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANDCXAI'19!S

niiuriililrlce or coVERNMENTAL FUNDs ro rHE STATEMENT oF AcrlvlrlEs

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUI'IE 30,2012

NET CHANGE lN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNIi'IENTAL FUNDS " " " " $ (8s9'014)

Amounts reporled lor Govemmenlal Aclivilies in the Stalement olAcliviliesare ditterenl because:

Governmental lunds report capital outlays as expendilures. However, in lhe Stalement of

lclVities ttre cost ol tt'iose assets is allbcated over theirestimaled uselullives and reporled

as depreciation expense. ln lhe currenl period, these amounls are:

Capilal Assels Additions.. 5,131'509

De;reciation Expense.. . (1 884100)

Excess ol CapitalAssels Additions over Depreciation Expense " "'

Disoosal olcaoital assels require removal olcost ol the capital assets lrom the capital assel

accounl on the Stalement oi Net Assels. resulling in a loss on disposalol capital assets on

the Stalement ol Activities

Some oflhe Municipality's rcvenues willbe collecied afteryear end, but are nolavailable

soon enough to piy foi the current peiod's expendilures and therefore, are delerred in

Fepayment of debt proceeds principal is expendilure in the govemmental funds, bullhe repaymeni

redu;es Long-Tem Liabilities in the Statement olNet Assets. ln lhe curent yearthe

repayments were.......-.....

Repayment of long-tem principal is expenditure in the govemmental funds, bui the repayment

reduces Long-Teim Liabitities in lhe Slatemenl oi Net Assets. ln lhe current year,lhe

repayments were:

Property Tax Debl - Law 42.... ........... ....'." '
Property Tax Debt- Law 146 ........ ...... . ...
Eslimated Landlill Closure and Posl'closule Care C0s1 """" "" "
LIMS Repayment Plan . .

Tolal Additional Expenditures . .. . " " '

Some expenses reponed in lhe Slatemenl ol Activities do nol requile the use ol current

financial iesources and lherefore, arc nol reported as expendilures in governmental funds

22,264
7,567

15,492

32.272

3,247,409

(e,e37)

519,109

2,115,000

77,595

i97,261)

$43 D1

lncreaseincompensaledabsences... . ......... . ...

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying Noteslo Basic Financial Statements.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenified Public At:countants a d Business Consuhants
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COIiIIiIONWEALT}I OF PUERTO RICO

lilUNlClPALlTY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEIiIENT oF NET ASSETS - PRoPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30,2012

Business-
tyPe

Activities

ASSETS:

Current Assels:

Cash

Accounls receivables

l\,4iscellaneous prepaid expenses

Tolal currenl assets

Restricled Assels:

Fest cied cash

Capilal Assets:

Land

Building and othel depleciable assels, nel ol accumulated deplecialion

Total capilal a$sets

Other asseis

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Current Liabilities:

l\,,lorlgage payable

Accounts payable

Accrued liabililies
Tenant secu ty deposils

Tolal curcnl liabililies

Non{ulrenl liabililies:

l\.lorlgage payable

Tolal liabililies

NET ASSETS

lnvesled in capitalAssets, Net of Related Debl

Besticted deposits
Unresiicled

Tolal net a$tets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

$ 151,871

419

3,482

155,772

538,s76

58,350

1,209,524

1,267,874

17,554

$1,979,576

$ 99,196

12,712

13,517

148,098

758,513

906,6'11

368,486
538,376
166,103

1,072,965

$ 1,979,576

See accompanying noles lo basic linancial slalemenls

RTMAN TOR} & CO., CSP C.ttified Pubtic Accountants and Business Consubott" 'o
PO BOx 3043 YAUCO PR .r,698 3M3 ' TEL (787) 856-6220 FAx: (787) 856'6233



COMIiIOI'IWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES. PROPRIETARY FUI'ID

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUI'IE 30,2012

REVENUES

Renl

0ther

Tolal revenues

EXPE]ISES

Administrative

Utilities

Operating and mainlenance

Taxes and insurance

Depreciation

Tolal expenses

Operaling income

NON OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

lnterest received

lnterest on mortgage

Total non opeEling revenues (expenses)

Net Change in Net As6ets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year, as reslaled

NET ASSETS, EI,ID OF YEAB

$ 622,224

1,550

Business-
type

Activities

623,774

3,275

(60,075)

(56,800)

1,011,770

160,688

19,564

145,081

45,151
'135,295

505,r/9

117,995

$ 1,072,96s

see accompanying noles to basic financial stalements

ROMAN TORO & CO , CSP Cenified Public Accountattts and Business Consuhants

Po BOX 3043 vAUCo PR 00698'3fl/3 ' TEL. (787) 8s6-6220 FAx: (787) 8s6'6233

2t



COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO

lilUNlClPALlTY OF SAtl SEBASIIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW$ PROPRIETARY FUND

FoR rHE FlscAL YEAR ENDIq {q!E qqlq?

CASH FLOWS FROII OPERANNG ACflVMES

Cash received lrom tmanls and HUD

Olher cash received

Adminislative

Managemenl fees

Salades and wages

Utilities

Operating and mainlenance

Misaellaneous lares and insulance

Nel cash provided by opeGling activilies

CASH FLOW FROII CAPTIAL At{D RELATED

FI{ANCIi{G ACnVmES

lnterest paid in capital debt

Mortgage pincipal Payment

Purchase of capilal assets

Net cash used in capital and related linancing aclivhies

CASH FLOWS FROI' INVESTING ACIVMES

Deposits to reserue tor replacement aod inlerest retained in accounl

Willdrawallrcm rese e for insuance escow

lnterest on iovestnent

Deposits lo and intercst eamed and letained for insurance escrcw

Nei cash provided by invesling aclivfies

Nel inclease (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning ol Year

Cash al end ol Year

Business-
tYPe

Activities

$ 621,805

1,550

623,355

(50,506)

(48,960)

(111,379)

09,5M)
(89,173)

(45,853)

(365,4s5)

257s20

(60,731)

(98,403)

(15,379)

(174,513)

(29,230)

(16,714)

3,275

li42,671J

40,736

111,135

_-$.!rzl-

ROMAN TORO & CO , CSP Cenified Publi. Alcountonts and Busi ess Consukonts

Po BOX 3043 \AUCO PR 00698-3043 TEL. (787) 856 6220 FAX: (787)856 6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

li,tUNlClPALlTY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS. PROPRIETABY FUND (CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2012-

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOIiIE TO

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income

Adiustmenl to reconcile change in nel assets to

net cash provided by operaling activities:

Depreciation

(lncrease) decrease in:

Beceivables

Miscellaneous prepaid expenses

Tenant secu iy deposits

lncrease (decrease) in:

Accounts payable- ?o days

Payroll

Tenanl security deposils

Nel cash provided by operating aclivities

$ 117,995

135,296

(41e)

(13)

(1,139)

6,806

(8e8)

292

See accompanying notes 10 basic linancial slatemenls.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenified Public Accottttatis d .1 Bbiness Coasultants
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COiIMOTIWEALIH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

ilOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NoTE 1 - SUIiIMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES

The Municipality ol San Sebaslidn, Puerto Rico ([.lunicipalily) is a local govemmental wilh lull legislative, liscal and

administrative p'ower lo operate as a govemmenlal under Law No. 81 o{ Augusl 30, 1991, as amended, known as the

Autononous Municipality Act ol the Connonwealth of Pueno Rico (Law No 81).

The Municipalily's governmental system consists ol executive and legislative branches. The Constitution of the Commonweallh

ol puerto iico jthe 'Commonwealth") provides lor the separation o, powe6 of the executive, legislalive and judicial bnnches.

A Mayor, elected every four yeaE by the cilizens, exercises the execuiive power ol lhe Municipality. The legislalive power is

exercLed by lhe lJunicipal Legislalure, which is also elecled every lour years. The General Justice Coun System ol the

Commonweallh, which hasjudsdiclion overlhe lrunicipalily, exercises theiudiciary powel

The Municipalily assumes responsibility lor providing services to its citizens related lo public housing, welfare, public sajely,

heallh, santation, education, culture, recreation, uftan developmenl, and many other genelal and administrative dulies.

The accounting policies ol lhe Municipality conlorm to accounting principles generally accepted in the united Siales ol Amedca

as applicabb la govemmenlal units. lle lollowing is asummary ol lhe more signilicant policies

The accompanying basic financial statements ol the Municipalily have been prepared in coniomity with accounling principles

generally acceptei in the United States ol America (cMP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board

('GASB). The GASB is the slandard-setting body lor govemmental accounting and linancial reporling. The GASB pedodically

updatei is codilication ol the existing Govemmenlal Accounling and Financial fieporling Slandards which, along with

subsequenl GASB pronouncements (slatemenls and lnlerprelations) constilutes GMP lor governmental units.

ln June 1 999, GASB issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statenenls - and Managenent's Discussion and Analysis - lor

Slate and Local covenments (GASB No. 34). This statement established new financial repoding requilemenls for stale and

local govemments. On July 1, 2003, the Municipality adopled lhe provisions ol GASB No. 34 as well as other slatemenls

relerred to below.

The accompanyiflg basic financial statements presentlhe linancial posilion and the results of operalions ollhe l\.lunicipality and

its various iundi a-nd lund types. The basic linancial slatemenls are presenled as of June 30, 2012, and for the fiscalyear lhen

ended. The more signific;d of these accounting policies are described below and, where appropiate, subsequenl

pronouncements will be referenced.

According lo lhe linancial reporting model established by GASB No. 34, the minimum required financial stalemenl plesenlation

applicabl; to the Municipaliiy is c;mposed ol the lollowing elements: (l) government-wide linancial stalements (GWFS), (2)

governmenlal lund linancial slatemenls (GFFS), (3) noles to basic financial slatements, and (4) requircd supplementary

inlormation (BSl).

The required supplementary information, whjch consisls ol a managemenl discussion and analysis (MDM), is inlomaiion

presenled atong with, bd ieparate from, the Municipality's basic linancial sialements. The [iD&A is a narralive Ieport that

introduces the iccompanying basic financial slatements and provides an analytical overuiew ol the Municipality's financial

activities for the year;nd;d June 30, 2012, based on lhe Municipality's knowledge of the transactions, evenls and conditions

rellected in the basic financial statemenis. The MD&A also highlighls ceiain key liscal policies that control ihe l\,lunicipality's

operations.

ROMAN ToRo &CO-, CsP Ce ified Public Accou tants and Business Consultants 24
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEFTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGI{IFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (CONTINUED}

As previously menlioned, on July 1,2003, other stalemenls and inlenletalions were also adopled in conjunclion and

simuttaneously wittr Clsti No. 34. Those statements and inteerelalions are: (1) GASB Slalement No. 33 - Accountng and

iiiiri"i i"io,ting for ttonexchange Tnnsactions, (2) GASB Statement No. 37 --Basr:c Financial stalenents - and

i"ni"i*iit UtZrt on and Anatisis - fot State and Local covemnents: On ibus, (3) GASB Staiement No. 38 - Ceialh

iinaiiat Statenent Note Disc/osu; and (4) GASB lnlepretation No. 6 - Becognilon and Measuenenl ol Cetain Liabilities

and Expenditues in Govemnental Fad Financkl Statenents

GASB No. 34 also required that the accounling for all governmenlal aclivilies repo(ed in lhe GWFS be based on applicable

oronouncement" issued oy the Financial Acc-ounling 
-standards 

Board (FASB) and its predecessol bodies, such as the

l..ornting irin.ipr"" Soard (ApB), issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided lhose pronouncemenls do nol conflict

*iri-q, .oft"Ji"t'olsg pron;unc;menls. Accordingly, in conjunclion and simuhaneously with lhe adoption of GASB No. 34,

if,. f,i.,i.ipuiity .f* .aoited the tottowing pronounc;ments: (1) APB Opinion No.20 - Accountng Changes, (2) APB Opinio!

ilo. ii - inr"l"rr o, Riceivabtes and iayables, (3) FASB Slatemenl No. 5 - /4ccounting lor Corlirgencies and (4) FASB

Sfar"ment ru0. $ - Ptiot Peiod Adiustn;nts. The Municipality has elecled lo not apply all statemenls and inte,relations

issued by FASB afler November 30, 1989.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying basic linancial slatemenls include all departments and organizations units whose lunds are under the

irJtrov 
",iirri,t,,ir 

.r rn, Municipalily. ln evaluating lhe l\,,tunicipatity as a reporltng entity, management has addressed all the

poi.niir .o.pon"nt ,nirr. The decision to include iny potential componeot unit in the rcpoding entity was made by applying

if,"-pi*iri..i .f GASBS No. 14, The Financiat R;poning Entity, as amended by GASB 3g,Delennining Whether Cetain

Organizations are Conponenl lJnits - an Amendnent of GASB 14

The basic cdterialor including a polential componenl unit wilhin lhe repoding entily is il potential component unils are financially

ac"ountaOL anO otft"r fegaliseparate organizalions lor which the Municipality is not financially accountable but the nalure and

sioniticance ot rtreir retatL hjp wilh the i.iunicipalitymay be such that exclusion ol lhe financial stalements lrom those ol the

ii'r..ipiltv ."rro'."ri. tt" iccomp"nying o"iic tinan;id stalements lo be misleading or incomplete. Accordingly, a legally

"efiaie 
oiganizarion would be reported as i component unit ol ihe lrunicipality il all of the lollowing c leria are met:

. The Mayorappoinls a voting maiolity of an organization's governing body and, either (1)ihe Municipality hasihe ability

to impoie its'witton that org;niz;tion or (2)th; organizatio; has the potentiatto provide specilic tinancial benefils to, or

impose specific financialburdens on the Municipality

. The economics resources, lor which lhe Municipality is enlitled, eithel leceived or held by the sepalate olganizalion,

are entirely oralmost enlirely lol the dilect benefil ol the Municipality or its constituents

The Municipality's management has concluded that based on the aloremenlioned citeria, lhere are no legally separate entilies

ri 
"rdiiiiiJtr",i', 

tn"i sh"outd be reported as componenl un1s oi the.Municipality lor the lisc4 year ended June 30, 2012

Accoidingly, these basic financial stalements present onlylhe l!'lunicipality as the reponing entity

These financial statemenls presenl lhe respective linancial position ol lhe govemmenlal activities, each major lund, and lhe

.ggA"r. i;iri;g tu.d iniomation of the- Municipality' as ol June 30, 2012, and lhe respective changes in linancial posilion'

where applicable, lhereol lor the liscal year then ended.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO BICO

ITIUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

t{oTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTII'IG PotlClES (ooNTINUED)

B. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

covEFNliiENT-WDE FINANCIAL STATEIIENTS

The govemment-wide financiat statements (the Statemenl of Net Assets and the Statement ol Activilies) are reported using the

econ;mic resources measurement focus and lhe accrual basis ol accounting. Revenue is tecorded when eamed and expenses

aie recoroeJ *nen a riatility is incurred, regardless olthe timing of related cash llows. G'"nl and similar 1ems are recognized

as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been mel

GOVERT.IMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMET'ITS

The governmenlal fund linancial statements are reporled using lhe cufient linancial resources measuremenl locus and lhe

moOiied accruat Oasls ot accounting. Revenues are ;ecorded wh;n susceptible lo accrual; as soon as il is bolh measulable and

.u.if"Uf.. W.ifrlf"" r""ns co eclible within the curenl pedod or soon enough therealler, normallywithin sixty (60)days, to be

useJio pay tiaoitities otttre current pedod. Expendilules are genelally recognized when lhe relaled liabiliiy is incurred

The exception to this general rule is the pdncipal and inlerest on general obligation longlem debt and compensated absences,

il any, are lecognized when due.

ln applying the 'susceptible to accrual' concepl to intergovernmental revenues {ederal grants) pulsuanl to GASBS No 33'

i"6i,iirt ia ii"ria Repoting for tl6lnexchange Iransactiors (the Municipality may acl as eilher provider or recipient), the

orovider s'hould recoonize liabilil[s and expensei and lhe recipient should recognize receivables and revenue when the

loofi""of" .iioiOifiw 
""orir.ments 

inctudinq lime requiremenls, are met. Resources transmitled belore the eligibility requirements

#;;i;;il, ;r1j"i;.st circumstance;, be reporled as advances by the provider and deterred revenue by the recipient.

There are essenlially iwo types ol revenue For some granls, lunds must be expended by. lhe Municipaliiy on the specilic

ila;;; pr;lr"t #r," a;y amounts willbe reimbuse-d. Bevenue is, therelore, recognized as expenditures are incurred to

ihe'extent available. For lhe other revenue, moneys are virtually unrestricted and are generally revocable only lo' lailure t0

.orpfy *if, pi.."riU.O *mpliance requirements. ihese lesources are rellecled as revenue al the time ol receipt or eadier if

the suscepliblelo accrualcrile a is mei.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incured, as under accrual accounting. Modilications to lhe accrual basis

ol accouniing include the lollowing;

.:. Emolovee,s vested annual vacation and sick leave is recorded as expendilure when utilized. The amount ol accumulated' ;;i,;i;;;"il;;il iii i""". .p"ia at June 30, 20.t2, has been reponed onty in lhe govemment-wide rinancial

slalemenls.

C. FINANCIALSTATEMENTPRESENTATION

Thebasiclinancialstatementsincludebolhgovemment.wide(basedonlhe[,4unicipalilyaSawhole)andlundlinancjal

"r,ri.r.nr". 
wf,ifr tn" prrvious financial reporti;g model emphasized lund types (the lolal. ol alliunds ol a parlicular type), in lhe

new tinanciat modet tie locus is on either lhe-Municipalily as a whole, or major individual lunds (within the basic financial

r't"t"r.ntit. Sotlt tht g*"mment'wide and tund linancial slatemenls (within the basic financial slatemenls) categorize p mary

activities as either govemmenlal or business type.

ROMAN TORO & CO.. CSP Cenilied Public Arcountants a d Busi'ess Consukants
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COMMOiIWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAT'I

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMABY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIi'IUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEIiIENT PRESENTATION (C0NTINUED)

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The govemment-wide financial slatemenls (the statemenl ol Net Assets and lhe slaiement ol Activities) Ieport inlormation of all

lhe ;div16s of the l,lunicipality. For most pad, the etlect ol inledund actigty has been removed lrom these govemmenl'wide

linancial statements. Govemmental aclivities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues' are

reported separately from business'lype activities, which rely to a signilicanl exlenl on lees and charges lor supporl

The locus ol lhe Slatemenl ol Net Assets is designed lo be similar to bottom line results for lhe Municipality and ils

oovernmental activities. This statement, lor lhe lirctlme, combines and consolidates govemmenlal fund's culrent financial

iesources (shodlerm expendable resources) with capital assets and long'lem obligations'

The statement ol Net Assets prcsenls lhe reporling entilies'assets and liabililies, with the diflerence reported as net assets Nel

assels are reporled in lhlee categories:

* lnvested in Capiial Assets. Net ol Related D,ebt - These consists ol capital asseis, net ol accumulaled deprecialion and

ilrifi196=A;dt *d-by M.tandirq balarc.s for bonds, notes, and other debt that are al buted lo the acquisition,

construction, or improvemenl ol those assels-

* Restricted Net Asseis - These results when conslraints ale placed on net assets use, which can be eilher extemally

,rp=*dr--"dtr .Jrantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constilutional provisions or enabling

legislalion.

.:. Unrestricted Net Assets - These consisls ol net assets which do not meel the delinilion of lhe two preceding catego es.

iii 

-t,i"t.a 

*t 
"rtar 

ofte., are designated, to indicate thal management does not consider lhem to be available lor

g.;"i;Lop;.rio*. ur"rtricled net as;eh otlen have constrainls on resources that are imposed by managemenl' but can

be removed or modified.

When bolh resticted and unresl cted resources are available lor use, generally it is lhe Municipality's policy lo use restricled

resourceslilsl, then the unrestdcted resources as they are needed'

The Statement ol Activities is locused on both the gross and nel cosls per funciional category. The slalement reduces gross

arp"nrr, {i*trOlng aap,tciation) by related progra; revenues, operaiing and capital granls This is intended to summarize and

simplify lhe usefs analysis olcosl olva ous governmenlal seftices

GOVEBNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The lund financial stalemenls (the Balance sheel and the slatemenl of Revenues, Expenditures, and changes in Fund

ffir;;") ;,q in subslance, very simil to the linancial stalements presenled in the previous iinancial repoiing model'

E.pr,"r-iJ r,"d ii 
"" 

ir,. rajoifunds in the govemmental category. Non-maiorfunds arc summa zed into asingle column.
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NOTE 1 -SUMIiIABY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. FINANCIALSTATEMENTPRESENTATIOT'I(CONTINUED)

Traditional userc of govemmenlal financial slatements will find the Fund Financial Statements presentation more lamiliar' The

focus is on irajor Funds, rather than the previous financial model's fund types. The Govemmenlal l\,laior Fund Slatemenls are

presented on currenl linancial resoulces and modilied accrual basis of accounting.

This is the manner in which these lunds are nomally budgeted. This presenialion deemed most appropdale to (a) demonstrale

legal and covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate lhe source and use of liquid resources, and (c) demonstate how lhe

l!4unicipality's actual experience conloms lo lhe budgeied fiscalplan.

Since lhe governmentat fund statements are presenled in a diflerenl measurement locus and basis of accounling than the

governmenl-wide stalements, reconciliation is presenled and a separate explanation lor each diflerences'

The Municipality reports its linancial position (Balance Sheel) and resulls of operations (Slatemenl ol Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes i; Fund Balance) in funds, which are considered sepaale accounting entities. The operalions ol each fund are

accounlejlot wilhin a set of sell-balancing accounls. Fund accounling segrcgates lunds according to lheir intended pupose

and is used lo aid managemenl in demonstlating compliance with legal, linancial, and conlractual provisions.

The new model as delined in GASBS No. 34 established criteria (percenlage ol lhe assets, liabililies, revenues, ot

expenditures/expenses ol either fund caiegory in the govemmenlal lund) for the determinalion of major funds. The non'major

lunds are combined in ashgle column in the lund linancial slatements. The Municipality reporls the lollowing majorfunds:

General Fund - This is the general operating lund ol lhe Municipality. ll is used to accounl for all linancial resources,

except those required to be accounted lor in another lund

State Assiqnment Public Works and Transpodalion Fund - This is the lund used lo account lor the transactions

; t6" Slrle Assg"r".ts, whbh p.mady objective, is lhe development ol proiecls related to improvements and

construction of streels and roads on the communities oflhe Municipality

State Assionment- Recreaiional Facilities Fund - This is the lund used lo accounl lol the transactions of lhe Stale

Asdsnments, -htrh pmarily 
"blect'reJ" 

the development of conslruction plojects related to lhe recrealional iacilities

ol ihe Municipalily.

&adrgtsIlEud - This is the lund used to accounl lor all lransaclions oi the Head Start Program. The obieclives ol

i[isl.ffi are to provide comprehensive heallh, educalional, nutdlional, social and other developmenlal services

primarily-to economi;alv disadvanlaged pre-school childrefl and inlants and loddlers so that lhe children will attain

school readiness.

Debt Service F|lnd - This is the lund used to account lor lhe accumulalion ol resources lor and the payment of,

generallong{erm debt principal, inlelesl, and related costs.

!93!lEU!!! - This is lhe lund used to account lor all linancial resources and lransactions relaled lo lhe loans lor

6iSr*iii-purpo."s and capital outtays of the Municipalily, which is linanced by loans lrom lhe Governmenl

Developmenl Bank ol Puerlo Rico.

COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUERTo BICO

MUt'IICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}
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i{OTE 1 -SUMIiIARY 0F SIGNIFICANT ACCoUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIALBEPORTINGPRESENTATIOT.I

The accounls ol the Municipality are organized on the basis ol funds, each if which is considered a separate accounting entity.

The operalions ol each lund are accounted forwith a separate set o, seltbalancing accounls that comprise ils assels, liabililies,

lund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Fund types are as lollows:

GelgIeLE!&F ls the general operating lund of ihe i/tunicipality. lt is used to account lor all governmenlal activity,

excepl those required lo be accounted for in anolherfund.

Soecial Revenue Fund-This is the lund used to accounl lor revenues deived lrom local funds, stale granls or other

reslricted revenue sources. The uses and limilalions ol each special revenue lund are specilied by l,lunicipalily

ordinances or state statules.

Debt setvic€ Fund - This is lhe lund used lo accounl for the accumulalion ol resources lor and lhe payment ol,

generallong-tem debt principal, inlerest, and relaied cosis.

CaDital Proiecis Fund - This is lhe lund used to accounl for linancial resources used for the acquisilion or

coiitrucrionstrucrion ol rnajor .upital facililies. The uses and limilations of each capital proiects fund are specilied by

lllunicipality ordinances or slate stalules.

E. FUND BALANCES

ln the cuflenl year, the l\.lunicipality adopted the provisions ol GASB Stalement N0. 54, Fund Balance Repoding and

Govennental iund lype Definr'tior; (GASB 54), which enhanced the uselulness ol lund balance inlomalion by providing

clearer lund balance classilications lhal can be more consistenlly applied. This slatemenl eslablishes fund balance

classifications thal comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the efent lo which the Aulhodty is bound to obserue constlaints

imposed upon the use ol resources teporled in governmental lunds.

Purcuanl lo lhe provisions ol GASB 54, the lund balances amounts are teported as nonspendable, resl cled, committed,

assigned and unassigned, based on the relative strength oi the conslraints that control how specific amounls can be spenl, as

descdbed as lollows:

.:. NgllEg$lablg - Represenl resources that cannol be spent readily wilh cash oI are.legdly or contraclually required not to

6iii6nt-nt ,inctuUing Out not limited to invenlories, prepaid items, long-lem balances ol loans and notes receivable.

+ ggg[igE!- Represent resources that can be spent only lor the specific puposes stipulated by conslitutional provisions,

dG-rd *orrc" proriders (extemally imposed by creditors or grantors), or through enabling legislalion (that is, legislalion

thal creates a new revenue source ;nd restdcts its use). Etlectively, restriclions may be changed or lilled only with lhe

consent ol resource providers.

+ g9!O@! - Represent resources used lor specilic purposes, imposed by lormal.aclion ol lhe entity's highest level ol

i6-ision nnking authority (Municipal Legislature through resolutions and ordinances) and can only be changed by similar

law, odinance or resolution, no lalerlhan lhe end olthe iiscalyear.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUliltlARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONINUED)

E. FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

t A!gig!g!- Represent resources inlended to be used by the Municipality lor specilic purposes bui do nol meet the cdteda

tol;iiissilied as reslicled or committed (generally executive orders approved by the l\.layor). lntent can be exprcssed by

lhe Municipal Legislature, the Mayor or by an otticial or body lo which lhe lllunicipal Legislalure delegales authority in

conlomity with Aitonomous l\,,tunicipalities Act of Puedo Rico, as amended. ln governmental lunds other than lhe general

lund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amounl that is nol reslricled orcommined

.: lhelgiglgd - Represent the residual classification lor the l\4unicipality's general fund and includes all spendable amounls

not conianeA in ihe other classilications. ln other lunds, the unassigned classilicaiion is used only to reporl a delicit

balance resulting lrom oveEpending ror speciric putposes lorwhich amounls had been lestdcted, commitled, orassigned.

At June 30, 2012, lhe accompanying lund linancial slalemenls reported fund balances as restdcled, assigned and uoassigned.

F. BUDGETARY DATA

The Municipalily annually adopts lhe Budget Besolulion lor all operaling lunds ol the ltlunicipality except lor cedain reslricted

"."ornli 
oi p,6p,iru,V funOi and Spec-ial Revenue Funds. Budgetary control is legally maintained at the lund level The

budoet is oreoared usi;q the modilied accrual basis ol accounting wilh encumbrance included as budgetary basis expenditures

it 
"'yrniiip"tiryt 

guag-"t Resotution provides transler authodty (1)lo lhe Mayor and lhe l\4anagemeni and Budgel Director,

wirfrin 
"na 

bet i""n Oe-padments and iunds, as long as the toial budgei of the Municipality (net ol intedund transfers) is not

i..ilir"O; tZJ to ff,r Ulnagement and Budget Dire;tor lo implement grant budgels as the granl applications are accepted by

the [,lunicip;iiiy; and (3) l;the lranagement and Budget Director io amend (re-approp ale) each new yeals budget' to lhe

.rt.nr of drtrri"nOing in.umbrances,;nd/or unexpended projecVgrant appropialions al year end. Municipality's Legislalule

a"iion ii 
"qrireO 

foi 1f1 use of the budgeted Legislature conlingency' and (2) the approval ol supplemental appropdations'

Du ng the year, several supplemenlal approp ations were necessary.

Thebudgetcolumns(originalandlinalbudgets)oftheBudgelarycomparjson-GeneralFundreflecllheoriginalbudgetand
ffr" 

",r""^O.J 
UrAga' f*"hich have been aia;usieO lor tegatry aulhorized revisions oI the annual budgets during the year)

lppiop,irio*, 
"Gpr 

i.raining proiecl appioprialions' eicumbrances, and unexpended grant appropdalions' lapse al the end

ol each fiscalyear.

Amendments to the budget, including lranslerc, Iequire ihe approval of the Municipal Legislalure. unencumbered appropdalions

f"p"" 
"itn""na 

ofrn" n".*t liscal ye;r. The lrunicipal1y lollows ihese procedures, in accordance wilh law, in orderto establish

lhe budgelary dala rellecled in the basic linancial stalemenls:

l,PorolMay3loleachfiscalyear,lheMayorsubmilstothel,unicipalLegislatuleaproposedbudgetforthefiscalyear
commencing lhe following July 1 in addition ol a budgel message;

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenilied Public Accouttartts and Business Co suhants 30

PO BoX 3013 VAUCO PR 006s8'3013 TEL. (787) 856'6220 FAx:(787)8566233



- NOTE 1 -SU iIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUT'lTltlG POLlclEs (CoNTINUED)

F. BUDGETARYDATA(CONTINUED)

- 2, The budget documenl is available lol public inspection pdor lo its approval by lhe l\'lunicipal Legislature;

3. The Commissioner of lrunicipal Affai6 examines the budget to verity il il complied wilh the law's standards and sends it to

- the Mayorfor any comments oI recommendalion belore the limited date eslablishes by the Law;

4. prior lo June 13, the annualbudget is legally enacled through passage ol lhe annual applopdation oldinance;

5. lf a budget is not adopted pdor to the end ol the efld ol the liscal year, the annual budgel lor the preceding liscalyear, as

approv; by the Municipai Legislature and lhe l\Iayor, is aulomalically renewed lor the ensuing liscal year unlil a new

- budget is aiproved. Thii permits the l\4unicipality to conlinue making paymenls tor ils operating and ottler expenses until

the new budget is approved;

_ 6. Subsequent lo the enactment of the annual appropdalion ordinance, the l!4unicipal Legislature has the authofty lo make

- nr..oiry amendmenls made during the liscalyear and are reflecled in the budgel inlomalion included in the Budgetary

Comparison Schedule - General Fund;

- l. Budgetary daia lor the Special Revenue Fund has not been presenled in lhe accompanying basic financial stalemenis as

suclifunds are budgeled over the lile ol the respective grant or proiect and not on an annual basis

- Since lhe budgetary basis ditters from accounting pdnciples generally accepted in lhe Uniled States ol America (GAAP), aclual

amounls lor lhie General Fund in the accompanting Budgetary Compadson Schedule, is presenled on the budgetary basis to

enhance comparability.

The pincipal dillerences belween the budgelary and GMP bases are thelollowing:

- 1 . Encumbrances arc recorded as expenditures under the budgetary basis and as a leserve ol tund balances under GAAP

2.Thenon€xoneratedpodionolthepropedytaxadvancesarepresentedasrevenueinthebudgetarybasisandasolher

* financing sources under GMP.

3.lnterfundtBnsactionsoflheGeneralandspecialRevenueFundsalenolincludedinlhebudgetarybasis'

- 4. Certain accrued liabilities and othet debis are not included in the budgeiary basis'

-5.ceriainrevenuessusceplibletoaccrual,i.e',boihmeasurableandavailable,arenolincludedinthebudgelarydata'
All encumbrance approprialions in lhe operating budget lap6e al the end of lhe fiscal year, Property taxes collecled during the

current year by ttre Municipal Revenue Collectiin Center (Fiscal Agent) are plesenled as levenues in lhe accounling basis but

- are not considered in the budgetary schedule.
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COiiIMoNWEALTH 0F PUERTo Rlco
MUI.IICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CoNTINUED)

F. BUDGETABY DATA (CONTINUED)

Thp $a.ia[In.ts o he SDecial Revenue Fund have not been included in the budgetary compadson because balances are not

;;;fri;il;. il;;;i oieoareo tor tne reaera rinance Awards Programs included in the l!,lajor and Non Maior Funds is

ffi#;;;';,"s;;, ;;ioa"*r,iJ li nor 
""..o"tilv 

a year' According,,lt's nol practic, to presenl an annual compaison ol

budgel for such Programs.

G, CASH, CASH EOUIVALEI'IT AND INVESTMENT

The Finance Direclor ol the Municipality is responsible lor investing lhe available resor]lces in cerlilicales ol deposit and oiher

.f,o,r-ir^ in*"rr*rr. fnvestmenG ari made trom ihe availabb c;mbined lunds of the l\4unicipality an9, **di.9Yllt-lll

"irlii.if 
io aiscfos" cedilEates ol deposit and other shodlem inveslments individually by lund in lhe combrneo lrnancrar

ffiffi;;iffi;il-i," *,r,r.".,1.i of deposit and other shorl{erm investmenls arc recognized as revenue in lhe

d"n"rf frnO. Cash in the Special Revenue, De Seruice and capilal Projecl Funds ale reslricled; accoldingly, resources

available were nol used for pool investments

Underlhelawsandregulaiionsofthecommonweallh'publiclundsdeposiledbytheMunicipalityincommelcialbanksmustbe
r,,ri, l"rrrioolr"a ror itre amounls deposited in exce; ol fie lederal depository insurance generally prcvided by the Federal

#il;i-i;r.ffi;;-c;;.i"r- rio'rcr A securities ptedsed as colaterat are hetd by agents designated bv the

Commonwealth s Secrelary ol the Treasury. but not in the Municipalitys name'

Cash with liscal agent represenls property lax collections retained by the lvlunicipalRevenuesoollectioncenter and undisbursed

paraal. ,i t"n i"a o".a!, loans or granti whrch are mainlained in a cash cuslodian account by lhe Govemment Development

Bank olthe Commonwealth olPuerto Bico

Cash balance recognized in lhe Debt Service Fund is reslricled forlhe paymeni ol lhe lllunicipalitv's obl'9'l?it 
-?19-"]hfl,"',1

"rt,irrra 
for.parifi. projects such as the acquisition or construclion ol permanenl improvements lhe slnKlng luno s

;;ffi; by ihr Gr;t;menlal Development dank ol Puerto Rico, agency which acls as the insurel and payer ol lhe

L4unicipalily's bonds and noles issued in accordance with law'

H, RECEIVABLES

Receivablearestatednelolestimatedallowancesloruncolleclibleaccounts'whicharedelermineduponpastcollection

"r"-"ri".." 
ano-rr*"r economic conditions. Receivable rrom Federal Govemment represenls amounls owed to the

U,ini.ip"iity fo, tai.uu"tmenl ol expendilures incured pursuant lo lederally funded proglams'

I. INVENTORIES

The General. Special Bevenue and Capital Project FunG. purchases ottice and p nting supplies gasoline. oil and olhel

arr"aoal]" *oil* rral for consumption. The cosl ot purchases is recorded as expenditure in the appropriale lund and lhe

inventory is not recorded in lhe basic linancial slalements'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NoIE 1 - sUMlilABY oF SlGNlFlcAt'lT ACCoUNTING PoLlclEs (CONTINUED)

J. CAPITAL ASSETS

Property. plant and equipment purchased or acquired is car ed al historical cost or astimated historical cost Conlribuled assets

,,""""l,iiro a r"i, |.i,"iiet vaiue as ol the da[ r;ceived. other costs incu ed lor rcpairs and mainlenance is expensed as

incurred.

Deprecialion on allassets is provided on the straighuine basis ovelthe following estimaled uselullives:

CapitalAssets

Buildings and building improvements

lnlraslructu re

Vehicles and equipment

Furniture and lixtures

Years

20-50
25-50
5-20
5-10

K. LONG.TERMOBLIGATIONS

The liabiliiies reporled in the govemmenl-wide linancial statements included genelal and special obligation bonds and notes,

."i Jii.i i"ig--6;i"uitities, iuch as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-lem liabilitieslo olher governnenlal entilies

ln the fund linancial statements, govemmental iund lypes recognize bond issuances cosl' duing lhe cu(enl peiod- 
. 
The iace

ir.rnt iiatoi [ir.o i. reportel as other linancing' sources, while bond issuance costs' whether or not wilhheld hom lhe

aclualdebl proceeds received, are reported as expenditures'

L. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

TheMunicipaliiyaccruesaccumulaledunpaidvacationandsickleaveandassociatedemployee.relatedcoslswheneamed(or

".iirr[Jii'o,i "*"0 uy lhe emptoyee. The Municipatity,s emptoyees are granied 3g.days,o{ vacations and 18 days ol sick

Llr"lnn,atp. vacations mav be accumutated up to i miximurir oi sixty too) days and sick leave up lo a maximum ol ninety

iiii ",]*"i""r,llrii.i "i 
.,i,or"r.. i"rio*ri"n, the employee is pad lor accumulated vacalion days up to lhe maximum

:ffi;l-S.p.;t.;;;r;.prJ,inienr p,ioito ,se ot a1 oi part ot the sick teave terminales all righls lor compensation excepl

[i"mobv"!i wirn t"n vears'ot iervicewho are entitted 10 aick leave pay up to lhe maximum allowed. The Municipalily accrued

a liability iorcompensatid absences which meet the following c teda:

1 . The Municipality's obligation relaiing to employee's rights to receive compensalion lor fulure absences is attdbutable to

employee's seNices already rcndered.

2. The obligalion relates lo dghts thal vesl or accumulale'

3. Payment oflhe compensation is probable

4. The amount can be reasonably estimated.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIi'IENTS (CONIINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUIiIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CoNTINUED)

L. COMPENSATEDABSENCES(CONTlt'IUED)

tn accordance with the above cdteria and requirements as established by GASBS No. 16; lhe.Municipality has accrued a liability

i;;;il;;;;;.;;es, wnrh nas ueen eameo bul nol taken bv Municipalitv's emplovees Fol lhe government-wide

.ia"rri[, ir," curent portion is the amouni esiimated lo be used in the lollowing year. For lhe govemmental lunds

,i"i.rrns, 
"|l 

of tf," .ripensated absences are considered long-lerm and therelore, are nol a lund liability and represents a

reconciling item between the lund level and governmenlwide presenlations'

ThelollowingisasummaryotchangesinlhebalanceofCompensaledAbsenceslortheliscalyearendedJune30'2012'

BALANCE

,tuN so. zot NEwlssuEs

L L690.652 $- 17261

CURRE}IT LOI{G.TERiI

EpBM! P98r!91!

BETIBEIIENTS
ANDcURREI'[T

lIATURATES

BALANCE
JUNE30.20l2

$ __J.127-9li

M. II'ISURANCE

The l\,rtunicipality has insurance coveBge lor ils public lacilities, primanly lo provide prclection lrom catastrophic losses Also'

;;i;.il;i ;iibi;l; ;ith; Municipatity are-covered under various surety bonds. The secrelary of the Treasury Depa(ment ol lhe

bommonlreallh ol puedo Bico is the agenl commissioned to place ;ll olthe lllunicipality's insurance coverage. Corresponding

il;;;p;6i. ";; 
-ithheid by the 

-[,tunicipatBevenueool;dioncenter 
from quarteriy advances of annual property tax and

subsidy send lo lhe Municipality.

N. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

lnterlundlransactionsalerellectedasloans,reimbursemenlsollransfels,LoansarereportedaSreceivablesandpayablesas
aoorooriate and are subpct to elimination upon consolidalion. Reimbursemenis occurwhen one lund inculs a cost, charges the

il[.#.i. i.".r,l* i*i *J ,"A"ir. iti related cost as a reimburcement. All other inledund lransaclions are treated as

;ffiil.'i;il;;;;d;;. g"*";nt.i , prp,i.tary runds are netted as pad of rhe reconcitiation to the govemmenr-wde

;;i;;;;;p;;;".td; n ; M-unicipalily has th; f;llowing tvpes ol reciproca and nonreciprocal interlund aclivities:

,r lntedund loans - Represent amounts provided wilh a lequiremenl lor rcpayment' which are recorded as 'due from" in lhe' t*-0ff gorar,l*ntat tund and "due to. in the borrower govemmefltal lund. inlerlund receivables, which are nol considered

curren y available linancial resources. are reporteo ai advances. For amounts not expected lo be collecled. within a

"rt"rlUfa 
p"rirO. i.f"tfrnd receivableslpayables are reduced to lhe esllmated realizable value and the amounl lhat is noi

expected to be repaid is reported as a transter lrom the govemmentalfund that made lhe loan'

.:.lnterfundkansfeIs_Beolesenlllowso{assets(permanenlteallocalionollinaflcialresoulcesamonggovernmenlal' iffiffi*iiiffi"r"ni iro*ioi .ri"t" . retum ;nd without a requirement ior repayment. Translerc are reported as

iiii",inj'.i].i ,ll" r;ir," go;.i.r."t"I frnd ,.king transfers and as other tinancing sources in the govemmenlal lund

receiving lranslers.

*lnlerlundfeimbursements-Representrepaymentsjlomlhegovemmentallundresponsiblelorparlicularexpenditules0r
expenses to the governmental lund that inilially paid forlhem'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SU MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCoUNTING POLICIES (CoNTINUED)

0. CLAIMS ANDJUDGIiIENTS

The eslimated amount of the liability tor claims and judgments, i{ any, which is due on demand, such as lrom adjudicated or

,.UfJ.f"ir. is recorded in the General Fund. T[re Long-Term Liabililies includes an amounl estimaled by the exlemal

.ornr.foii oiff,r ff,f*i'pality as a contingent liability or lia6ilities with a tixed or expected due dale, which will require lulure

available linancial resources lor ils paymenl

P. USE OF ESTIMATES

ThepleparalionolthebasiclinancialslatementsinconlormitywilhaccounlingpinciplesgenerallyacceptedintheUnited
Stae'i o'f America requires management to make estimates and assumptions thal aflecl the repoded amounls ol assels and

fi"iifitl" 
"nA 

disclosures ol contingent assels and liabilities al lhe date o, lhe basic linancial statements and lhe repoded

revenue and expenses duringlhe reporting pedod Actual resull could diflerlrom ihose eslimates'

O. ACCOUNTING FOR PENSION COSTS

For lhe Duroose ol aoDlviflq lhe requirements ol GASB Statemenl No 27' Accounting lot Pensions by State and Local

dirii"l iipny"i'Gn5e lto. zi1. amenaea ty GASB Statement No. 50. pension D,sc/osures. The Municipality accounts

toi o"n.ion cosi. irom ihe standpoini ol a participant in a multiple-employer cosl-shaing plan. Accordingly pension costs

;#; ; il ;";;.;;nr'i* 6iri. iin"niiur .rirements are equal to the slaluto ly required contibutions wilh a liability

;#;,;r"; ;il;il;d';dirJ contriburions.Tle srare governmenl ot rhe clmmondealh ot puedo Rico is considered lo be

iii-soonsor ol'the 
'Emolovees 

Betirement System ot tie Governmeni ol Puedo Rico and its lnslrumentalities (EPS) and

ii.*iii-o-tjo. . ,irr.,ir]6ver cosi-straring aeiineo nenetit pension plan and a hybrid delined conlibuiion plan, respectively, in

iir-"i' 1,-"-.rirji"v.* j ir,1.' lrtunictpatity pirticipate. The l\,rtunicipality is consideled a parlicipanl and nol a sponsor' ol lhese

,"ii,.."nt .rit"i,. since lhe maioriw oi the padicipants in lhi aforementioned pension trust lunds are employees of lhe

;J#;;;ih; pil; ii.o init6 uuri. rin"*ial statements olsuch retilement syslems are parl of the linancial relorting

;.w;irh; c;;.;;".ittr ot puerto Rico. Accordingty, no porrion of the nel pension obtigarion (NPo) related lo ERS has

0".,i ilfo"a"o lo the Municipality in $e accompanylng ba;ic {rnancial statements' The basic linancial stalemenls ol lhe

6orr"n*"Jtf, ot ir.rfo Rico repod the total amount o-l the net pension obligalion ol ERS, including any amounl thal may

corespond lo the MuniciPalily

The Municipalily accounts lor pension costs from the siandpoint of a participant in a mulliple'employer cost-sharing plan

,c;;;;giri p";,*, i"tt, re;gnized in lhe accompanying basic flnancial slatemenls are equal to lhe slaluto ly required

cont buti;s, wilh a liability recolded for any unpaid requiled contdbutions'

R. RISK FII'IANCING

TheMunicipalitycarriescommelcialinsurancelocovelcasually,thell,torlclaims''and.olherlosses.lnsurancepoliciesale
,ri"ilit"J'[v i6 ir",r. nico Treasury Department and costs are.allocated among a[ the Municipalilies ol Puedo Rico.

Cost ol insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted lrom lhe gross property tax colleclions by lhe l\'lunicipal Revenue

il;;ft;i;; (ai[fl1 lor tne year ended June 30, 2012 amounled to $383,905. The cu(enl insurance policies have nol

i.r" 
""..Ji"J 

rit"rirJt"a. rn"'cRtttt 
"t.o 

o.auaea $szz,goz tor wo*e6 compensalion insurance covedng all municipal

employees.
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COMMOI.IWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUltlilABY OF SIGNIFICAI'IT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (CONINUED)

S. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PROI{OUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following accounting standards thal have etlective dates after June 30' 2011:

.f. GASB Slalement No. 57, 1PEB Measurenents by Agent Enptoyeg and Agent Mutliple'Enployet Pk's' This stalement is

eflective lor peiods beginning atter June 30,2012;

.:. GASB Slatement No .60, Accounting and Financial Repotiing lor Sevice Concession Arangenents This stalemed is

eflective lol pedods beginning after December31,2012;

.:. GASB Statemenl No 61' fhe Financiat Repotling Entily: Onnibus' an anendnenl of GASB Statenents No 14 and l'lo'

34. This slalement is etlective lor pedods beginning atter June 30, 2013;

.! GASB Statement No .62, Codification ol Accounting and Financial Repoting Guidance Conlained in Pre'Novenber 30'
'lsiir;iB"iamcpeF;ronouncements.Thisslaie;entiseftectivetorperiodsbeginningafterDecembet31.2012:

* GASB Slatemenl No 63, Financial Repoting ol Delercd Ou tows ol Fesources' Defened lnllows ol Resoutcgs and l'let

iosrl,;on. Thrs statement is ellective lor pedods beginnlng aller December 31' 2012:

* GASB Slalement No. 64, Derivative lnstunents: Apptication of Hedge Accounting .Temination 
Prcisions (an anendnent

-iiaiiaSt"tr"rtNo.5S)ThisstalementisefleclivelorpedodsbeginningatterJune302013;

TheAuthoty,smanagementhasconcludedlhalthelutureadoplionoftheseGASBstalementswillnothaveaSignificant
impact on the Authoity's basic linancial statements'

NOTE 2- CASH AND CASH EOUIVALET'ITS

TheMunicipalitymaintainsilsdepositsinvariouscommercialbankslocatedinPuenoFlicoandGovemmentDevelopmentBank
r,ji p,ilrt" hi..' Cosl i,o"."i, t,o, tonot uno lunds relaled to cenain granl awards arc required by law to be held with

GDB,

The Municipalily adopted lhe provisions oI GASB Sialemenl No 40 (GASB No 40\' Deqsit aod lnvestrenl Risk Disclosurc' an
'iiiiiiilti 

aeia statenent No. g. rnisitarereni requires that stale and local governments disclose essential risk

;?;#;;il;r[p;rils ana inuesm"nrs. rire oisclosure requirements cover loul main areas: (1) credil sk, (2) interest rate

risk, (3) custodial credil risk, (4)loreign exchange exposure

CSP Cenlicd Publtr Ac(ountan!\ a,td Bunne!\ Co suhants

00oe8-Jtj4J . TEL. t787) 856 6220 rAx: 1787t 85b'621J
ROMAN TORO &CO-,

PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR
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NOTE2 - CASH AND CASH EoUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

credit risk- This is the risklhal an issuer or other counteFarty to an inveslmenl will nol lullillits obligations. ln compliance

ffiffiws and regulations olthe commonwealth, the lrunicipality has adopted, as it's custodial and credil risk policy, the-ii,tiiriii 
ir in"nti"nt euidelines tot the Govennent of the Connonweallh of PLteto Rico Accodirtgly the Municipality

,r,irti *fv , ;ligations of lhe Commonweallh, obligations ol th€ United.states ol Ame ca' certilicates ol deposits'

commerciaipaper, binters, acceplances, or in pools ol;bligations ol the muntcipalities ol Puerto Rico, which are managed

[,l Ofjii.lrJrlrsi" rh. aforemeniionei invesiment guideli-nes, the l!4unicpality does not invest in marketable securities or

aiv tvoes ol inves-hents lor which credit risk exposuie may be signilicanl. Therelore. the l\,lunicipality's managemenl has

""i.liioro 
ir,"t in. ,i"'t,.taied to any possible loss relaled to deiauits by commercial banks on lhe Municipalily's deposits is

considered low at June 30, 2012.

hlg@LlgEig[ - This is lhe risk thal changes in inlerest rales oldebl investments will adversely alfect the lairvalue of an

ffi.6-Tt 
" 

tttrnicipality manages its e;posure to declines in lair values by: (t) not including debt investments in ils

i.r".ir.ri p"ttftfit 
"t 

Lr." io, zotj, (z) tiriting rh. weighted average matu ly ol its inveslmenis to three monlhs or less'

".Jiif 
t."iirg ,*t.l its bank deposiis in intJrests be; ng accounts generating interesis at prevailing market lales. .At

JrnJljo, zorzitf,. urni.ipality's inveslments in cedilicates ;l deposits are recolded at.cosl, which approximates lheir lair

value. iterelore, the Municip;lity,s management has concluded thal al June 30, 2012, the interesl rate isk associaled wilh

the Municipalily's cash and cash equivalenls is considered low.

Custodialcredit risk - ln the case of deposits, this is the riskihat in the event of a bank failure, the l\,lunicipality's deposits

i-y *r l. ,.roro"o purcuanl to the statement of lnvestnent Guidelines lot the Govemnent ol the connonwealth of

irirt, R- tt" l"t.nr". deposited in commerciat banks by the Municipality are insuted by the Federal Deposit lnsurance

b",po,"r,"" iioLcig"n"," f up to a maximum ol $250,000 per deposilor. ln addition, public lunds deposited in commercial

U.nl, tVlnd Ur.ii,ipait, a; f;ty secuities pledged as collateral are held, in the Municipality's name, by lhe agenls oi the

corroi,*"*ht s,j""tiry ol Treasury. Deposiliwith GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses relaled

to O"i"rfi.lV OOg on d"iosit transaciions have been incuffed by lhe Municipatity lhrough June 30, 2012. Therelore, the

i;r;-rhdtyi ;*;;.nl has conctuded that at June 30, 2012 the cuslodial credit fisk associaled with lhe lllunicipaliiy's

cash and cash equivalents is considered low

Foreiqn exchanoe risk - The isk thal changes in exchang€ rates will advelsely aflecl the value ol an investment 0r a

Gffi,qr"6,Oin-i r" tf,, aforementioned inv;shenl guidelines, the lvlunicipality is prevenled lrom investing in loleign

."iwitL. , anyitf,., types of inveslmenls in which loreign exchange risk expos.ure. may be signiiicanl Accordingly'

,.-n"g".;f # .;narded that the ioreign exchange dsk related lo the Municipality's deposils is considered low at June

30.2012.

The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks ol $5,263,581 in lhe GeneralFund, $248 316 in the Stale Assignment-

pffi-w;,i;;irJ i;;r,odalion Fund, $2,672,510 in the stale Assignment- Recreationat Facitiiies Fund, $2,616 in the Head

StartFund and $3,731,369in othel govemmenlal lunds, were lulv c;lhleralized at June 30' 2012' The deposils at GDB ol

;i:;fih. iil D"biilice Fund"and $3,679,773 inthe Loans Fund are unsecured and uncollalelalized, as no collateral is

requked 1o becarried by govemmental banks.

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIiIENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 3 - BECEIVABLES

A. SALES AND USETAXES RECEIVABLES

AsdescribedbelowinNote15,theMunicipalLegislalureapplovedtheimpositionolthemunicipalsalesandusetaxdudng
ii""^i 

"ofi 
zooo-zooz. lndividuats, orqanization; and entities subjecl to collect the municipal sales and use lax must lile a

ili.ir? a i,,i,, rn-rrl"ip"]l'tv.i* s 1r. ,i.r, eo- aay ot eactr month based on_tax.coected in the preceding month.

itJ;i;,';il il ;"iriorc or $oz,zzr and $173;720 in rhe Debt service Fund and in ihe govemmental funds,

respectively, represents the amounts due by the taxpayeE at June 30, 201 2'

B. PBOPERTY TAXES BECEIVABLES

prooertv taxes receivable amounting to $308,142 in the General Fund represents lhe linal liquidaiion ot the property laxes

;ifi;;il;;;;ro'ii raiz, not iorr"*r"a uy tn" r,runicipatiry ar June 30,2012. property laxes receivabte in the amount ol

izz,osz in t'h" Debt Service Fund represents advance! lrom lscal yeal 2011-2012, not collected by lhe Municipality at

June 30, 2012.

C, INTERGOVERNMENTALRECEIVABLES

Slategovernmenlreceivableintheolhergovernmenlallundsrepresentsexpendiluresincurred,nolyetreimbuEedbylhe
stale;gencies. Following is a delailol the stale govemmenl receivable:

Puerto Rico Electric Power Aulhority

Staie Departmenl Wo and Transportalion

State Department of Labor Law 52

Tohl

$667,s64
182,558

93.805

$t4iJzL

0. FEDEBAL GRANTS BECEIVABLE

Federal oranls receivable in lhe govemmental tunds replesent expenditures incurred' nol yel reimbursed by lhe federal

"g.n.i.J; 
tn. p.t.-thtough granlors. Following is a delailol the lederalgrants rcceivable:

Head Start
Public & lndian Housing

Community Developmenl Block Grant

Child Care & Developmenl Block Grant

Homelessness Prevenlion and Rapid Re'

housing (HPBP)

Others

Total

$ 20,44s
10,350

137,516

18,121

1,764
12,585

$200J!5

E. OTHERS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

AlJune30'2012'theMunicipalitymaintainedinlheGeneralFundothermiscellaneousreceivablesamounlinglo$2,167'ln

"OOi.., 
t-f.,a X""l SUrt fund and lhe other govemmental lunds maintained miscellaneous receivables amounling to $808 and

$4,863, respectively.
ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Cerlified PtuLic Accountatts anrl B siness Coasuhants 38
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 4- DUE FROlii /TO OTHER FUNDS

lnterfund receivables and payables al June 30, 2012 are summa zed as follows:

GeneralFund

General Fund

GeneGlFund

other Govemmental
Funds

Total

Head Siart Fund

Loans Fund

other Governmental
Funds

GeneralFund

Payroll and related acduals Paid
and nol reimbursed

Payroll and related accruals Paid
and not reimbulsed

Payrolland rclated accruals Paid
and nol rcimbursed

Cash poolin the same bank

account

$528

30,101

537,125

246.392

tet4J-40

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets and changes occurring in 2o12lor the l,unicipality was aslollows:

Balance
July 1,2011 Retiremenls /

Reclas3ificaiions

Balance

GovernmentalActivities

Captal assel, not be ng depreclaled:

Land

Construction in progress

Tolal capilal assels not being dePrecialed

CapLial assets, being deplecialed:

Buildings and bullding improvemenis

Fumiture and fixtures

Vehicles and equipment

lnlraslructure

Tolal capital asseb being dePrccialed

Less accumulaled depreciation lor:

Buildings and building mprovements

Furnilure and Iirlues
Vehicles and equipmenl

lnliaslructure

Total accumulated dePreciation

Tolal capilal assets being deprecialed, net

Governmenlal aclivities capilal assels, net

Additions

$
(2.336.924)

{2.336.924)

2,336p24
(97,105)

June30,2012

$ 5,737,176
5,295.782

11.033.558

38,777,247
2,880,437
6,606,694

13.896.438

62.160.776

(9,461,202)
(23$,A27]l
(5,713,333)
(1.607.650)

$ 5,737,776
3.700.666

9.438.442

36,431,283
2,760,948
6,469,669

s8.721.488

(8,506,670)
(2,174,036)
(5,318,653)
(1.329.721)

(17.329.080)

41.392.408

l_t0.!30150

3.932.04;

3.932.040

9,000

216,594
137,025
836.850

1,199.469

(954,s32)
(256,959)
(394,660)

e77.929],

(1.884.100)

(684.631)

L3217rtr9

2.239.819

87,168

87.168 (19.126.0121

2.326.987 43.034.764

t p33?I $14,068122

ROMAN TORO & CO.,

PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses were charged to govemmenlal lunctions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities Amounl

General Government

Public Safely
Public Wo*s
Culture
Flecrealion

Heallh and Wellare

Total deprecialion expenses

$ 117,003

59,669
659,417
265,773
569,052
213.186

$1!4fi00

A summary ol capital assets and changes occurring ifl 2012ior Villa Soigal Projecl was as lollows:

Business-type Aclivilies
Retiremenls / galance

Reclassilications June30.2012
86lance

July 1,2011 Additions

Capilal assel, not being deprcciated:

Land

Total capilal a3sels not being depreciated

Capital assets, berng deprecialed:

Land improvemenls

Building and building improvements

Building equipment

Furnrtute and lixlures

Equipment

Total capilal assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciaiion lor:

Land lmprovemenls
Build ng and building improvements

Building equipment
Furniture and lixlLrles

Equrpment

Total accumulaled depreciation

Tolal cspital assets b€ing depreciated, nel

Governmental activities capilal assets, nel

$ 58.350

735,624

3,655,370
496,870

33,584
12.743

4.938.151

(542,391)

\2,824.467)
097,748)
(32,689)
(11.4141

(3.608.7091

1,329.442

$_llEzJg2

15,378

15.378

08,491)
(81,572)

(34,378)

(2e4)

i56l)

fi35.296)

(119.918)

$ [r!310)

$ 58.350

58.350

739,624

3,655,372
512,2N
33,584
12.143

4.953.529

(560,882)
(2,906,039)

\232,126)
(32,983)

111.9751

(3.744.055t

1.209.524

s l20zlzl

ROMAN TORO &CO--
PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUI'IICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMET'ITS (CONIINUED)

NOTE 6 -ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabililies in governmental lund linancial stalemenls represent expenditules incurred dudng fiscal

v""iiijir:i6ii, .rl ."t paid by the lrunici-pality at June 30, 2012. Following is a detail ollhese accounts payable and accrued

liabililies by major lund:

Accrued
Liabilities

Accounts

General Fund

State Assiqnment- Public Wofts Fund

Head Start Fund

Loans Fund

Olher Govemmenlal Funds

Total

$ 333,774
430,874
23,345

251,718
758.804

$rJ98ll5

$90,442

$90,442

$ 424,2t6
430,874

23,345
251,718
758.804

$1188 957

NOTE 7 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

As desc bed below in Note j0, the l\4unicipality issues generaland special obligalion bonds and noles, principally, to provide

ir.irl.lG ,rqri.itit, and construction ol maior ca-pital lacilities, to pay debt. inculrcd.in prior yearc' and to cov,er lhe

exoenditures of a'soecial event.At June 30, 2012, the governmenl.wide and lund financial slatemenls presented the following

accounts payable. rigarding to lhe outslanding balance of lhese bonds and noies:

Description

Puerto RicoElectic Powel Aulhority

General Service Administration

Puerlo Rico Water and Sewer Authodty

lltunicipalRevenuecolleclionCenter
Fetirement System Administration

Reliremenl System Adminislration'

Special Laws

Puerto Flico Deparhenl ol Treasury

Puerto Fico Departmenl ol Labor

lnlemal Bevenue Seruice

Total

Amounl

$ 1,025,000

413.425

$_ 3e125

$ 667,364
2,514

89,927

58,s76
71,387

1,417,431

3,565
5,060

47.310

$2,t0 til4

CSP Certifrcd Public Accountants and Business Co suhants

00698-3U3 TEL (787) 856 6220 FAX: (787) 856 6233

Principal

Accrued inlelests

Tohl

NOTES- DUE TO OTHER GOVERNIiIENTAL UNITS

As of June 30, 2012, balance due to other govemmental units consists ot lhe lollowingl

-wunmenulAgqlgy 

------ !99Y11-
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cOiIMoNwEALTH oF PUEBTo BlCo
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE SASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 9- DEFERRED BEVENUES

A. Municipal license tares -The delercd revenues ol $1,374,679in the General Fund relates to volume ol business lax

collected in fiscal year 201 0-201 1 lhat will be earned in liscal year 201 2-201 3

B. Federal Grants - The delerred revenues presenled in lhe other govemmenlallunds represenls the portion ol lederal granls

received lor which qualifying expendilures have not been incurred. Delelrcd levenues lrom the federal governmenl are as

tollows:

Proqram oescription Amount

Child & Adult Care Food Program

Public Assistance Grants

Others

Total

$13,471
152,796

3.778

$tzt045

c. oihers - The defe(ed revenues ol property taxes amounling to $308,142 in lhe General Fund represenls the tinal

liquidalion olthe property taxes of lhe liscalyear 2011-2012, not collecled by the l'junicipality at June 30, 2012'

NOTE 1O- GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS

Longlem liability activity forthe yearended on June 30,2012, was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Beginning
Balance Ending

Balance
DueWlthin
One Year

Borrowings
orAdditions

Payments or
oeductions

Bonds and Notes Payable

Propeny Tax Debt - Law 42

Propeny Tax Debt - Law 1 46

LIMS Repayment Plan

Eslimated landlill closure and

post-closute care cost

C,ompensated absences

Claims and Judgments

Heallh lnsulance Administration

Tot l

$ 19,272,000
959,098
158,921

32,272

246,590

2,630,652
1,800,000

256.266

i_25,355J99

$- $ (2,115,000)

\22,264)
u,567)

\32,272)

05,492)

$ 17,157,000
936,834
151,354

231,098

2,727,913
1,800,000

256.266

tzuzuo5

$ 1,21o,ooo
23,663

7,56S

16,267
204,69697,261

t 17261 U2J12,E9X $ -!!0al94

ROMAN TORO & CO.,
PO BOX ]013 YAUCO PR

CSP Cenified Public Actountdnts dnd Business Co stltants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIi,IENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1O-GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

Business-tvDe Aqlivities

Business-lvpe Aclivities

Villa Soigal Proiect Modgage

Total

Beginning
Balance

Borowings
orAdditions

$

Paymenls ot
Deductions

$ 956.112

$ g50Ju
$ (98.403)

$ ooJ0i)

DueWithin
OneYear

$ 857.709

$ -857J09

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONOSAND NOTES PAYABLE

The l\Iunicipality issues general and special obligation bonds and notes, pincipally, to provide lunds lor

construction of major capilal iacilities, to pay debl incurred in pior yea6, and lo cover the expenditures

Bonds and noles payables as olJune 30, 2012, are compdsed olthe lollowing individual issues:

the acquisilion and

ol a special event.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

$3,420,000, Series 1996, lor consiruction puposes, payable in annual installmenls ranging lrom

$70.000 to $315,000, excludinq va able inleresl lrom4.70% to 6.58%, through January 1,2016

$1,010,000, Series 1996, lor construction puPoses, payable in annual installmenis ranging lrom

$2o,00Olo $95,000, excluding variable inleresl lrom4.70 to 6.58"/", through January 1,2015

$1,800,000, Series 1997, for construclion puPoses, payable in inslallmenls ranging lrom $20,000 to

$165,000, excluding vaiable interest lrom 4.87% to 6.56%,lhrough July 1, 2021

$1,510,000, Series 2m1, lor conslruclion pu,poses, payable in annual installmenls ranging lrom

$20,000 to $135,000, excluding va able interest lrom 2.70% to 5.60%, lhrough July '1, 2026

$1,110,000, Se es 2005, torconslruction puposes, payable in annual installmenls Enging kom

$50,00010 $105,000, excluding variable interesi ilom3.28% to 4.80%, through January 1, 2019

$1,150,000, Series 2007, lor construction puPoses, payable in annual inslallmenls ranging lrom

$20,000 to $95,000, excluding variable interest from1.53% to 7.007", through July 1,2031

$485,000, Series 2OO7,lor conslruction putposes, payable in annual installmenis ranging lrom

$30,000 to $65,000, excluding variable interest lroml 53% to 7 00%, through July 1, 2016

$670,000, Sedes 2007, lor construclion purposes, payable in annual inslallments ranging lrom

$75,00010 $120,000, excluding vadable interesl llom 1.53"/" to 6 00%, through July 1, 2013

1,130,000

265,000

1,110,000

1,'t65,000

620,000

1,020,000

235,000

120,000

ROMAN TORO & CO--

PO ROX 3043 YAUCO PR
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CoIiIMONWEALTH oF PUERTo RlCo

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

$967,000, Sedes 2008, forconstruclion puPoses, payable in annual inslallments ranging from

$80,000 to $ 142,000, excluding variable interesi flom 1.43% lo 6.00%, through July 1, 2017

$3,445,000, Sedes 2008, forconstruclion puposes, payable in annual inslallments ranging llom

$50,000 to $295,000, excluding variable interesl llom 1.53% to 7 50%,lhrough July 1,2032

$660,000, Series 2010, lor construclion purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$75,00010 $120,000, excludiflg variable interesl lrom 6.00% to 7 00%, through July 1, 2016

$990,000, Series 2010, for construclion purposes, payable in annual insiallments ranging from

$10,000 to $80,000, excluding variable inieresl lrom 6.00 to 7.00%, lhlough July t, 2034

$1,510.000, Sedes 2010, for construclion purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$20,000 to $130,000, excluding variable inlerest lrom 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2034

$605,000. Series 201 0, lor construclion purposes, payable in annual inslallments ranging lrom

$5,ooo to $50,000, excluding va able interest lrom 6.00% lo 7.50%, lhrough July 1 , 2034

$1,510,000, Series 2010, lor conslruction purposes, payable in annual installmenls ranginglrom

$25,000 io $120,000, excludinq vaiable interest lrom 4.75% lo 6.75%, through July 1, 2034

$2,770,000, Series 2011, lor construction purposes, payable in annual inslallmenls ranging lrom

$60,000 to $255,000, excluding variable interestlrom 6.00% to 7.50"/", through July 1 , 2030

$275,000, Sefies 2011,lor operational pumoses, payable in annual installments ranging from $30,000

to $50,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00 to 7.50%, lhrough July 1, 2017

Total General obligations

512,000

3,215,000

420,000

945,000

1,440,000

580,000

r,,$0,000

2,640,000

2't0.000

$___12J52.000

These bonds and notes ale payable with the lollowing lvlunicipalitfs resourcesl

{. Special ad valotem propedy lax, which is restdcted lor debl seNice and retained by lhe Govemmeni Development Bank lor

Puerto Rico lor such puPoses;

t lrunicipal sales taxes lesources reslicted for debl seruice, and;
.1. Operational resources.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

ti,tUNlClPALlTY 0F SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1O- GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENEFAL OBLTGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The annual requirements to amortize lhe general obligalions bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2012 are as lollows:

Year Ending Principal lnterest

June 30, paynert Payment Total

2013
2014
2015
2016

2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037

Total

$ 1,21o,ooo

1,165,000

1,260,000

1,270,000

827,000
3,365,000
3,560,000
3,775,000

725.000

$ lzl57.@o

$ 854,114
978,369
935,485
857,478
807,889

3,442,581
2,376,976
1,035,864

79.075

$l1l08 itl

$ 2,064,114
2,1$,369
2,195,485
2,127,478
1,634,889

6,807,981

5,936,976
4,810,864

804.075

s20r253!11

The mortgage payabte by the Business-type Activities is owed by Villa Soigal Projecl and consists ol a 8% mortgage note,

payable in monlhly installmenls of $13,203, including inleresl, until 2019, collaleralized wilh land and building.

Annual requirements to maturity ol the mortgage are as follows:

Yea. Ending Pdncipal lnteresi
June 30. paymenl Payment Total

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
20t8-2021

Total

$ 105,822

112,909

120,471

128,539

137,148

252.820

$857109

$ 52,602

45,515
37,953

29,885

21,276

14,764

$ 201tD5

$ 158,424

158,424
158,424

158,424

158,424
267.584

$ L059J04
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COIi,IMoNWEALTH 0F PUERTo BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1() - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

8. PROPEBTY TAX DEBTS - LAW 42

On January 26, 2000, Act No. 42 was enacled to autho ze the CBll\,| lo enier into a financing agleemenl ol up to $200 million,

lor a lem ;ol exceeding 30 years. The linancing agreement allows for the linancing ol a debl that the municipalities ol Puerto

Rico have with lhe CR U, a;sing lrom the final setllements ol property tax advances versus actual collections lhrough liscal

year 20OO. The amounts thal ihe municipalities will collecl lrom the additional property laxes lesulting lrom the increases in the

;ubsidy lrom lhe Commonwealth 10 lhe municipalilies are assigned lhrough this law to repay such loan. The increase in lhis

subsidy was the resull ol lhe Public Law No. 238 ol August 15, 1999.

ln addition, on February 12,2003, the Municipalily enlered into a repayment agreemenl wilh the Govemment Development

Bank for puedo Bico (cDB) and the CRIM, lo pay ofl the excess of property tax advances lhrough fiscal year 2000 and2001.

The CBllll retains the paymenl from lhe property tax advances of the Municipality. The amounts retained by lhe CRIM are

remitted to GDB on July 1 oleach year through July 1, 2032. The outslanding balance of the nole payable 10 the CRllt4 at June

30, 2012 amounted to $936,834.

C. PROPERTY TAX DEBT - LAW 146

On September 24, 2002, the CBll!4, on behalf ol the municipalilies of Puerlo Bico, entered into a,inancing agreement wiih GDB

pursuant to the provisions o, Law No. 146 ol October 11, 2001. The purpose ol lhis financing agreement was lo extinguish in

advance certain bonds payable issued by lhe Public Finance Coporalion, a subsidiary oflhe GDB, which were odginally issued

to pay certain property tax receivables owned by the municipalilies ol Puerto Rico through 1996. The outstanding balance ol the

note payable to the CRIM al June 30, 2012 amounled to $151,354.

D. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS

The annual requirements lo amorlize lhe property tax debls (Law 42 and Law 146) outstanding as of June 30, 2012 are as

lollows:

Year Ending Principal lnierest

June 30. Davment Payment Total

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2035

Total

$ 31,230

32,717

34,297
35,977
37,762

219,766
284,569
372,455
39.415

$1"08!J00

$ 67,020

65,063
63,012
60,862
58,606

255,013
.178,443

78,790
1,219

$_82t 028

$ 98,250

97,780
97,309

96,839
96,368

474,779
463,012
451,245

40.634

src10210
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COMIiIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 10 -GENERAL LONG-TEBii,! DEBTS (COi'ITINUED)

E. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

The governmenl-wide stalement ol net assels includes $2,727,913 ol accrued sick leave benelils, and accrued vacation

benelits, representing the ll,4unicipalily's commitmentlo lund such costs lrom fulure operations

F. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

Liabilities of $3,600,000 reporled in ihe slatemenl ol net assets represenl the balance owed lor claims and judgmenls at June

30,2012, as descdbed in Note 19.

G. STATE INSURANCE HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

Liabilities ol $256,266 reported in the stalemenl ol net assets reprcsenl the balance owed for services provided by the Slate

lnsurance Heallh Administration to lhe Municipalily and not paid atJune 30,2012

NOTE 11 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CABE COST OBLIGATION

The Municipality owns a municipal solid waste landlill and adopted lhe tequiled provisions ol Statement No. 18, "Accounling fot

Municipalsolid Waste LandfillCloswe and Post Closure Care Cosfs: issued by lhe Govemmental Accounting Standalds Board

(GASB No. 18) and the regulations set forth by lhe U.S. Environmenlal Protection Agency (EPA) in ils'Solid Waste Disposal

Facility Criteia", issued on October 9, 1991. Siate and federal laws and regulalions require lhe Municipality lo place a final

cover on its landlill site when closed and perlorm certain maintenance and moniloring lunciions al the landlill site lor 30 years

after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that lhe landlill stops

accepting waste, lhe Municipality reporls a portion of lhese closure and post closure care cosls as an operating expense in

each peiod based on landfill capacity used as ol each statement ol nel assets date. The itunicipality discontinued ils landfill

operations and ceased lo accept solid wasle in January 1993. Posl closure care procedures were assumed by the lt4unicipality

and the closure process was completed in January 17, 1997.

The lotal estimaled liabilily lor posl closure care costs has been determined in $231,098 as ol June 30, 2012.

NOTE 12- DEBT RETIBEMENT

Revenues ol the Debt Service Fund consist ol the ad-valorem property laxes which are recognized as tevenue when collected

lrom taxpayers and repoded by the l\.lunicipatRevenuecolleclionoenler o, the Commonwealth olPuerlo Ricolo lhe lt4unicipality.

These properly taxes arc accumulaled by the l\,lunicipalRevenueoollectioncenter in costs of the general obligalions bonds

issued by the Municipality. Paymenls are made to lhe Govemmenl Development Bank ol the Commonweallh ol Puedo Rico

from such accumulaled lunds by the Municipal Bevenue Colleclion Center of Puerto Bico.

NOTE 13 - PROPERTY TAXES

The MunicipalBevenuecollectionoenler ol the Commonweallh ol Puerto Rico is responsible lor the assessment ol all real and

personal property located within the Municipality and for the le!y, administration and collection ol the corresponding tax

contribulion.
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COIi,IMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

I'IOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 13 - PROPEBTY TAXES (CONT|r'IUED)

The property lax contribution is levied each year over the appraised value of the property al lhe beginning ol the calendar year.

The real property assessmenl is based on lhe current value exisling in lhe year 1957 and lhe pelsonal property al the cu.rent
value atlhe date ol lhe assessment.

The tax rate per annum is 9.08% for real property and 5.83% for personal property of which 1.03% ol both belong to the
Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico and 8.05% and 4.80%, respeclively, belongs to lhe Municipality. From lhe portion belonging to
the Municipality, 6.00% and 3.00%, respectively, represents lhe Municipalily's basic lax rate that is appropdaled lor general
puposes and thereforc accounted lorihrough lhe GeneralFund.

The remaining portions2.2s% for real propedy and 2.00% lor perconal property represents the ad-valorem property laxes
wilhheld by the Municipal8evenueoollectioncenter ol the Commonwealth ol Pue(o Rico and reslricled for debi service, which
is accounled lorlhrough the Debt Seryice Fund (See Note 8). The Municipality has nol reached the maximum statulory tax rate
limitlor the basic lax while there is no limitalion forthe ad-valorem tax rate.

The Commonwealth ol Puerto Uico granls complete real property tax exoneration on lhe lirst $15,000 assessed valualion on
residential units occupied by their ownels. However, lhe Municipality receives the full amouni levied, except for residential units
assessed al less than $3,500 on which acomplete exemplion is granled. The MunicipalHevenuecolleclionoenler, inslead ofthe
property laxpayer, becomes the source ol paymenl in lhese cases.

The Municipality granls a compleie exempiion lrom perconal property taxes up to an assessmenl value o, $50,000 lo retailels
with an annual nel sales volume of less than $150,000. The MunicipalRevenuecollectioncenter advances to ihe Municipality,
on monthly paymenls, 10tr/" of the contribution assessed over property lor each liscal year. ln accordance to Law, these
advances will be conldbutions by the l\,lunicipalBevenueoollectionoenler from laxpayers. The
irunicipalnevenuecollectionoenter peiodically inlorms to the Municipalily the amounts collecled lrom taxpayers and applied to
outstanding advances.

The ltlunicipality recods as revenue in the general lund the property tax conlibution when received irom monlhly advances
lrom lt4unicipal Revenue Colleclion Center.

Due to the fact that colleclions ol property lax are applied to the advances ol properly tax paid by the lrunicipal Revenue
Collection Cenier, lhe amortizaiion ol the advance at end oi year was nol available due to that is in process ol vedlicalion by
extemal audilors.

NOTE 14-MUI'IICIPAL LICENSE TAXES

The municipal license tax is levied each year based on the pior yeals gross revenues lor all commercial and indusirial
organizations doing business in ihe Municipality and which are not lolally or partially exempl lrom lhis lax under the lndustrial
lncentives Laws ol the Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico. All laxpayers are required to lile lheir declarations by Apdl 23 of each
year. The lax rales are as lollows:

{. 1.50% lor ,inancial institutions.
.:. 1 .00% lor savhgs and loan associations..t 0.500/" lor oiher organizalions over $500,000.
* 0.40% lor olher organizations up to $500,000.

Taxes are payable in lwo equal semi-annual installmenls on July 1 and January 1 following lhe date ol levy. ll they are paid wilh
declaration,lhe taxpayer is granted a 5% oldiscount. Collections ol taxes during cufienl liscalyear, applicable to the next liscal
year, are recorded as deferred revenues in the General Fund.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAT'I

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 15- SALES AND USE TAXES

On July 4, 2006, lhe Legislature ol lhe Commonweallh of Puerlo Rico approved Act No. 117 ('Act 11/) which amends lhe

Puedo Rico lnlemal Revenue Code ol 199410 provide for a sales and use tax ol 5.5% lo be imposed by lhe Commonwealth

Govemmenl. Acl 117 also autho zes each municipalty govemmenl1o impose a municipal sales and use tax ol 1.5%. This

municipalsales and use tax has in general the same tax base and limilations (excepi lor unprocessed loods) as those provided

by the Commonwealth's sales and use tax.

Section 6189 of the Puerto Rico lnlernal Bevenue Code ol 1994, as amended, authorizes lhe Municipalities in Puerto Rico to

impose a sales and use tax to consume$. This lax must be imposed in conlomity with the base, exemptions and limitations

conlained Subtitle BB of the Code. The Municipal Sales Tax is specifically imposed overall sales transaclions ol taxable items

and combined transactions (as delined by lhe municipal internal regulalion) taken place wilhin municipal limils. The l,lunicipal

Tax is also specifically imposed over the purchase price lorlhe use, stoEge or consumption of taxable transactions (as delined

by the municipal inlernal rcgulation)taken place within municipal limits.

The lllunicipal Legislature approved lhe imposition ol the municipal sales and use lax during liscalyear 2006-2007. lndividuals,

organizalions and entilies subiecl lo collecl lhe municipal sales and use tax musl lile a tax return to the Municipality. Tax is due

each 2Om day ol each month based on lax collected in the preceding month. Resources are recorded in ihe General Fund.

Also, on July29,2007, the Govemor ol Puerto Rico signed inlo Law an amendment ol Act No. 1'17, H.B. 2193 known as Acl

No. 80. The most signilicant amendments were: first, to unifom lhe tax rate at ry" ol which lhe municipalilies will collect 1%

and the Puerto Rico Treasury Department the olher 6%, 05% of the 6% belongs lo the municipality and it is distributed through

three sepalate funds: MunicipalDevelopment Fund, irunicipal Bedemption Fund and lllunicipal lmprovements Fund; secondly

the establishment of a Local Commercial Rule and lhe elimination ol source and nexus rules to impose the sale and use tax.

These lunds are administered by the Govemmenl Developmenl Bank lor Puerlo Rico. Finally, the Law reslricls the use ol the

lunds by the municipalilies to certain specilic activities.

NOTE 16- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

lntergovemmenlal revenues consist primarily o, fuflds rcceived flom lhe Commonweallh ol Puerlo Rico, 'in lieu ol lax'
paymenls from the Ouasi-public Coporation, Puedo Rico Electric Power Aulhority, and lederal financial assistance received

,rom lederal govemmenl.

Granis and subsidies received kom the Commonwealth ol Puerlo Rico and lederal agencies include, among others, a general

subsidy lor uban developmenl and capital improvements. lntergovernmental revenues are accounled lor through the General

Fund excepi lor those direclly related to ufuan development and capital improvements, which are accounted ror through the

Special Revenue and the Capital Project Funds. Fedeal Financial Assistance is recorded in the Special Revenue Fund.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONIINUED)

NOTE 17 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

lnterlund transfe6 durlng the liscal year ended at June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Transfer Out Transler ln Purpose Amounl

s 1.164.197

$ 1J04J.!t7

Debt Setuice Fund Debl relrremenlGeneral Fund

Tolal

NOTE 18- EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAI.I

The Employee's Betirement System of lhe Government of Puedo Bico and its instrumentalily (ERS) is the adminislrator ol a

cost-sha ng multiple-employei relirement s)€tem established by lhe Commonweallh ol Puerto Bico. The ERS was cleaied

under the Act 447, approved on May 15, 1951, as amended, and became ellective on January 1, 1952. EBS cove6 all regulal

employees ol the Commonweallh o, Puerto Rico and ils instrumenlality and ol certain municipalities and components units nol

covered bylheir own letiremenl systems.

padicipalion is mandatory except lor membeE of lhe Legislature, Government Secretaries, Head ol Agencies and Public

lnstrumentality, Assislants ollhe Governor, the Comptroller ol the Puerlo Bico, Gubernatoial Boald and Committee appointees

and Expeimenlal Service Slation employees. ERS provides retiremenl, death and disability beneiits. Disabilily relirement

benelits are available lo members for occupalional and non-occupational disabililies. Betirement benelits depend upon age at

retirement and number ofyears of clediled service. Benefits vest alter len yearc olplan participalion.

The Municipality adopted the requiremenls of GASBS No. 25 for all lhe career employees that ale covered under the

commonwealth ol Puerto Rico Employee's Belirement syslem, a mulliple-employer public employee relilemenl syslem,

established by State Laws.

under the plan, the employees and employer porlions are conlribuled, for which, the employe€ amount is wilhheld rrom

sala es. Covered employees are required by Commonwealth statule to contribule 5.775% for the tirst $550 ol monlhly salary

plus 8.275% lorthe excess olthis amount, or on lhe allemative, 8.275% ol allsalary. The Municipality contibutes to the syslem

9.275% ol lhe participating employee's salaries.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE,IS - EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Law Number 305 of September 24, 1999, amendments lhe Act Number 447 that establlsh a savings program. All employees
active in lhe system as ol December 31, 1999 may elecl lo iransler from derine contribulion programs to lhe new savings
program (a delined conlribution plan). Employees in the savings program may now contibute lrom a minimum of 8.275% up to
a maximum ol 10% ol their monthly salary, and will invested in an accouni which will eithen (a) earn a lixed lale based on the
iwo-year Constant Matudty Treasury Note or, (b) earn a rale equalto 75% o, the relurn olthe System's inveslmeni portlolio (net

of management lees), or (c) earn a combinalion ol both altematives. lf al time ol retiremenl accumulaled benefits amouni to

$10,000 or less may elect to receive a lump sum dislribution up lo the accumulaled benefits. Under ihe new program the

retirement age is reduced lrom 65 to 60 for those employees who ioined the cunenl plan on or atter Apdl 1, 1990.

The pension benelit lor padicipanls who retire with less than 30 yea6 olseruice is computed at lhe rate of lyr% ol their average
compensation lor each year ol credit service lor the remaining years. The System also provides for death and disabilily benelits
and the assets ollhe System pedajning to the participant employees.

A variety of signilicani actualial assumplions are used to detemine the slandard measure o, lhe pension benefit obligation and
lhese assumpiions are summarized below:

t The presenl value ollhe fulure pension paymenls was compuled by using a discount oi 9%.
.:. Fulure pension payments reflecl an assumption ol a 6% salary inffease.

Allemployees lhal do not elecl to lransler lor the new program and who at the time ol employmenl are 55 years old or less are

eligible to participale in lhe System. Pension benelits for padicipants wilh 30 years of service are as follows:

YEARSOF PARTICIPANT'S
SERVICE AGE PEI{SION BENEFITS

65% ollhe avenge ollhe three years of highestsalary during lhe
30 or more 55 or less employee's service period.

75% oflhe average olthe three years of highestsalary during lhe
30 or more 58 or more employee's service period.

75% olthe average ollhe three years ol highesl salary during the
employee's service peiod (employees starled wo*ing atter Ap l 1,

30 or more 65 or more 1990).

The amount ol the total pension bene,it obligation is based on a slandardized measurement established by GASBS No. 27,

Financial Repoting for Delined Benelit Pension Plans and Not€s Ascbsurc fot Defined Contibutions Plars. The standardized
measurement is the aclua a, presenl value ol esiimated delined pension benefils, adiusled ior the eflecls of projecled salary

increases and step-rate benefils, estimated to be payable in lhe,ulure as a result of employee services performed to date.

The measure is intended 1o help usels assess the Syslem's funding status on a going-concem basis, assess progtess made in

accumulaling suflicieni assets to pay benelits when due, and make compadsons among olher public retirement systems. The
measurc is independent oflhe actuarial funding method used lo delermine conlributions tolhe plan.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO FICO
MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 18- EIiIPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTII{UED)

The membership ol retirees and beneficia es cuflenlly receiving benelits and leminated employees entitled lo benelils, bul not

yei receiving benelits, and active employees and the distribulion of aclive employees between vesled and non-vesled is not

readily available.

Contribulions in 2006 and prior years were made based on percenlages established by the law. Such percentage has nol been

based on actuaial studies, as required by accounting pinciples generally accepted in the lJniled Staies of America. An
actua.ial compilation ol the annual contdbution applicable lo the [,lunicipality has not been prepared. Accordingly, the accounts

by which the actual conl butions ditler lrom the required actuarial conlribulions are nol known.

The total pension expenditures recorded in the category ol administration lor the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012 was

approximately $386,186. All employees who al lhe time ol employmenl are 55 yeaE old or less are eligible to participate in the

System. No benelil is payable iflhe participant receives a refund ol his accumulaled contibulions.

The historical trend inlormation regarding lhe accumulalion ol assets and pension benefit obligalion in lhe ERS is not available.

For the ten-year lrend inlormation, refer to lhe separalely issued linancial stalements of the EBS as of and lor the liscal year

ended June 30, 2012. The P.R. Fetirement Plan Administration provides additional inlormation of the ERS. They issue a public

available linancial reporl that includes linancial slatemenls and required supplemenlary iniormalion for ERS, as a component

unit ol lhe Commonwealth ol Puerto Bico. That report may be obtained by wdling 1o lhe Adminislralion at PO Box 42003,

Minillas Stalion, San Juan, P.R.00940.

NOTE 19- CONTINGENCIES

A. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

The l\,lunicipality is, at presenl, a delendant in a number oi legal matteE lhal aise from alleged improper application of policies

and negligence in lhe ordinary course of the l\,lunicipality's activiiies. Wilh respecl lo pending liligation, the l\.lunicipality has

repoded liabililies ol $1,800,000 in the governmenl wide slatemenl oi net assets.

ll is management's opinion, based on the advice ol ihe legal counsel, that lhe potential claims againsl the Municipality not

covered by insurance will malerially aflecl the linancial lesources for ils payment.

ln addition,lhe l\,4unicipality is a defendanl orco-de,endant in several legal proceedings, which are in discovery stage. Cedain ol

these claims are covered by insurance. Legal counsels with lhe inlormation curlently available cannot delemine the linal

outcome ol these proceeding. However, it has been the l\,,lunicipality's experience that such aclions are settled lor amounts

substantially less lhan the claim amounts.

B. FEDERAL GRANTS

ln the nomal cource ol operalions, the [.lunicipality receives grants lrom various Federal and Slate agencies. The grant

prog€ms are subject to audit by agenls oi the granting auihority, the purpose of which is lo ensure compliance wilh conditions
precedent lo lhe granling ol funds. Any liability lor reimbuEemenl which may a se as the result ollhese audils is not believed lo

be mateial.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEO}

NOTE 20 - FUND BALANCE (DEF|C|T)

As of June 30, 2012, lhe lund balance (delicit) is compised oj the lollowing:

G$eEl
Fund Bahne (Delicit) Fund

Siab Srab
A$ignil. r. Assiqnmtrl-

Public Works a F@Eri@
T.tlspodatid Facililies

0.ll

Debl Ser'vice

Tdt l Fmd Babnca {lrdicit)

, 

.,.

:-

'.

,,urr,uri-

.

:

.

.

i'
:
- 3,397,9s4

2,575,111

$ 49,604

680313

80.082
1979,163

.

,r ro

$ 49,604

680,313

2,672,510

80,082
53n,117
2515,111

2m 166

1,941

102,887

3,373
1.180

131,100

263,166
1,941

142,87
3,373
1,180

1.9233n

tlN52!

.

.

_ 13nsn

i2072,51! t 2l7E U1 Si.IUli{ l 2t202e ill.lo2lnl

NOTE 21 -ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS

A. GOVEBNMENTAL FUt{D FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The lollowing reslatemenls have been made in the govemmental fund linancial slatements, which are reporled as
adjuslment to ihe beginning lund balances:

Description
General

Fund

Fund balance, beginning

To adjust the Relirement
Syslem Administration -

Special Laws debi

Fund balance, beginning as
reslaled

$ 1,662,995

280.891

$_1,!![r.E!0

ROMAN TORO & CO
PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR

CSP C"ttified Public Actounto,ts an.l Business Co suka ts
00698 3Ul - TEL. 1787) 856 6220 FAX: (787) 856 6233
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COIUMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO BICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE SASIC FINA}ICIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

[oTE 21 -ACCOUNTTNG CHANGES AND BESTATEMET.TTS (CONTTNUED)

B. GOVERNMENTAL WIDE FINANCIAL STATETIENTS

The lollowing reslalements have been made in the govemmental wide linancial slatements, which are reporled as an
adiustment lo lhe beqinninq net assets:

Descriplion

Nel assets, beginninq $38,115,535

To record adjustmenl to account balance o1:

a. Betirement Syslem - Special Laws debl 280,891

b. Claims and judgmenl 1.800.000

Nei assets, beginning as restated 040J90.420

NOTE 22 - SUBSEOUENT EVENTS

On July 19, 2012lhe ltlunicipality's Executive Branch approved Resolulion Number 1, autho zing to issue a general obligation

bond in the amount ol $1,275,000; and,

- On Augusl 21,2012 the [/unicipality's Execulive Branch approved Ordinance Number 8, aulhorizing lo issue a general

obligation bond in lhe amount ol $2,075,000.

- These bonds are payable wilh resources collecled lhrough the [,lunicipal Redenlion Fund.

ROMANTORO & CO., CSP Ceiilied Public Atcountants and Business Cotsubants s4
PO BOX 3043 YAUCOPR 00698-3013 . TEL. (787 ) 856.6220 FAX: (787) 8s6 6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GENERAL FUND
FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2012

Budoeted Amounts
Original Final

Variancewith
ActualAmounts FinalBudgel

(BudgetaryBasis) Positive
(S€e Note A) (Neqative)

REVENUEST

Properly la-xes

Municipal license taxes
Charges for seruices
State conlibltions
Licenses and permits

lnleresl, fines and penallies

Otherrevenues
Prior year allocalion

EXPEi{DITUBES, ENCUMBRANCES AND
OTHER FINANCING USES:

Curent
General govemment

13.9s0.426 15.0€.886 14.650.808

$ 3,946,730
1,800,000

699,000
6,417,427

552,669
237.000
338,000

1.053.460

8,622,940 8,806.652
1,068,053 844,207
2394,4M 2,709,s65
309,260 182,819
330,240 342,807
750,844 750,844
514.645 1.406.992

13.9s0.426 15.043.886

$ 3,946,730
1,800,000

699,000
6,417,027

552,66S

23.7,000

338,000

4,366,440
1,840,202

743,231
6,319,843

688,132
481,933

211,027

$ 41S,710

40,202

44,231

(97,184)

135,463

244,933
(126,973)

n.053.460)

1393.0781

Publc salety
Publicworks
Cullurc
Becreation
Health and welfare
Translers lo olher lunds

Total expendilurcs, encumbrances and other
financing uses

EXCESS (DEF|C|EI{CY) 0F BEVENUES oVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITUBES, ENCUIiIBFANCES
A D oTHER F|NANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

NOTE A - EXPLAI'IATION OF DIFFERENCE BETTVEEN

EXPENSES

Exolanation ol Difl erences:

SourceMnf lows ol resourcts:

8,645,265
810,421

2,654,426
181,753

337,126
708,133

1.164.197

14.501.321

161,387

33,786
55,139

1,066

5,681

42,711
242.79s

542.565

$ 149rEZ

GAAP REVENUES AND

$ 149.481

BUOGEIARY INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS AND

Aclualamounts (budgetary basis)'available lor appropialion' ,rom lhe budgetary compalson schedule
Dilferences-budgel to GAAP

Tolalrevenues and olher finandng sources as reported on lhe slalement of revenues, expenditures, and
chanqes in lund balances

Uses/outf lox,s ol rcsources:
Aclualamounts (budgetary basis)lotal charges to appropriations' from tre budgetary compa son schedute
Difierences-budgel lo GAAP:
Accrual adluslmenis lo expendilures
Pior year expendilure are nol outllows ol budgelary resources, but are expenditure lor linancial purposes
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered, bul not received, are repoded in he year the order is

placed for budgelary reponing purposes
Translerlo otherlunds are outllows oi budgetary resources but are notexpenditure for ftnancial reporting

purposes

Tolal expendilures a,rd otherlinancing uses as reporled on lhe stalement of revenues, expendilures, and
changes in lund balances

s 14,650,808

$ 14.050.!0!

$ 14,s01,321

6,791

73,859

(283,801)

(1.164.1971

$__1 rru?3

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenilied Public Accou tants and Business Contukonts
POBOX3013 yAUCO PR 00698-3013 . TEL. (787)856-6220 FAX: (787)856.6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

- NOTE B - STEWAROSHIP, CO PLIANCE At{D ACCOUNTABILITY

BUDGETARY CONTROL

The Municipality's annual budgel is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is not in accordance with GMP, and
replesenls departmenlal appropialions recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipal Legislature pdor lo the

- beginning ol the ,iscal year. Amendmenls to the budget require the approval ol the Municipal Legislature. Tnnslers ol
appropdations within ihe budget, known as lrlayo/s Resolutions, do nol require the approval ol the Municipal Legislature.

_ The ltlunicipality prepares its annualbudget including the operations olthe generalfund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase orders, contracls) are considered
expenditures when incurred. For GMP reporling purposes, encumbrances outstanding atyear-end are reporled as reservations

- of fund balances and do nol coflsiilule expenditures or liabilities because the commilmenls will be honored dufng the
subsequenl year.

- The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end ol lhe liscal year will lapse at the end of such liscal year. Oiher
appropialions, mainly capital project approprialions, are conlinuing accounts lor which the Municipal Legislature has autho zed
ihat an unspenl balance from the prioryear be carded loMard and made available ior current spending.

The annual budgel as presented in the Budgelary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is the budget ordinance at June 30,
201 1 representing lhe odginal budget. There were no supplemental appropdations lor the year ended June 30, 201 2.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP CeiiJied Public Accountan,s and Business Consultatus 56
Po BoX 3013 yAUCo PR 0a698 lM3 . TEL. (787) 856.6220 FAx: (787) 856-6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUEPTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITUBES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

FEDERAL GRAI{TOR/PASS.THNOUGH OR CLUSTEB TITLE

U.S. Deoarlhent ol AqdculluE
Direcl Programsi

Hural Benlal Housing Loan (Section 515 Direcl Loan)
Passlhouqh Puerto Bico Education Deparlmenl

Child and Adull Care Food Program

Sublotal Deparlmenl oJ Ag cuhure

U.S. Deoartment ot Housino 6nd Urban Develooment
Direcl Programs:

Community Developmenl Block Granl Program, Entitlemenl Grants

Seclion I Housing Assistance Payments
ABRA-llomelessness Prevention and Bapid He-Housing Pogram

Public and lndian Housing

Seciion I Housing Choice Voucher Pogram

FEDERAL

CFDA
NUMBER

10.415

10.558

PASS.THBOUGH
IDENTIFICATION

NUI,lBER
FEDEBAL

EXPENDITURES

14.218

14.195
14.257

14.850
14.871

ccc-013

$ 857,709

1.257.681

1.368.485

565,854
351,841

45,S53

791.573

1.755.221

16.579 71.864

SubtolalU.S. Depl. ol Housing and lJdan Development

U,S, oepartment of Justice
Pass-lhrough Program lrom:

P.B. Deparlmenl ol Justice:
Edward Bymes Memo al Grant Program

1.,.S. Departme ol Trsnsportation
Pass-through Puerto Hico Deparlment of Transportation

(Tralf ic Salety Commission):

State and CommLrnily Highway Salely (ARRA)

U.S. Deparlmenl of Enerov
Energy Efllciencyand Conservation Block Grant (ARRA)

lJ.S. Oepartment ol Health and Human Services
Pass-through Puerto Hico Governo/sOffice ol Child Setuices
and Community Developmenl

Head Start Program
Pass-through Puerto Bico Governols oflice ol Ch ld Services
and Communily:

Child Carc and Developmenl Block Granl Cluste.

SubtotalDept. ol leallh and qJmar Servrces

TOTAL EXPENO|TUNES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

20.600

81.128

93.600

s3.575

36.020

02cH994-06

241-201046

2,953 840

395.134

3.348.974

l7J01l1)5

ROMANTORO & CO., CSP Cenified Public Accountants and Businerr Consuhdnts
PO BOX 3013 yAUCo PR 00698 3Al . TEL (787 ) 856-6220 FAX:(787)856-6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE 30,2012

NOTE A. BASIS OF PBESEiITATION

The accompanying schedule oJ expendilures oi lederal awa.ds includes the federal grant aclivity ol the Municipality and is presented
on lhe modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures are recognized when the related liability is incurred. The inlomation in lhis
schedule is prcsented in accordance wilh the requiremenls ol oMB CircLrlar A133,'Audits of States, Local Govemmenls and
Nonprofil organizations'. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may difler lrom lhe amounls presenled n, or used in

the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NoTE B - FEDERAL CFDA NUlilEEB

The Catalog of Federal Domeslic Assistance (CFDA) Number is a program idenlificalion number delermined by lhe OMB Catalog of
Federal Domestic Assistance. The tilst two digits idenlify lhe lederal depa(ment or agency thal administers the program and the last
three numbeG are assigned by numerical sequence.

NOTE C. PAS$THROUGH ENTITY IDENTIFYITIG NUMBEE

Slale or localgovemmenl rediskibutions of lederalawards lo the Municipalrty, known as'pass-lhrough awards', should be trealed by
lhe Municipalily as though lhey were received direclly from lhe lederal governmenl.oMB Circllar A-133 requires lhe schedule lo
include lhe name of the pass-lhrough enlily and lhe identdying number assigned by lhe pass-lhrough entily lor lhe federal awads
received as a sub recipienl. Numbe6 idenlified as N/A are nolapplicable and numbeB identilied as N/AV are nol availabLe.

NOTE D . RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITUBES PRESENTEO IN THE SCHEOULE OF EXPENOITURES OF FEDERAL
AWARDS TO THE EXPENDITUBES PBESENTED IN THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMEI.fiS

Descdplion Head Sian Fund
Other

Funds
Business-Type

Aclivitils

10.415

10.558
14.195

14.218

14.257
14.850

14871

16.579

20600
81.128
93 575

93.600

Tolal ledeal awards expend lLrres

Expendilu/es and changes in basis ol accounling

Tolal expend ilures, Iund stalem enls

2.953.84;

2,953,840

$2t53.840

$ 857,709 $
399,972

565,854

1.368,485
351Ml
45953

791,573
71,864

62,950
36,020

395,134

4,381,501 565,854

$8135355 S565.854

The lederal expenditurc o, Rural Rental Housing Loan (Section

represenl a cash award orexpendilure lor lhe fiscal year.
515 Direcl Loan, CFDA 10.415) is a loan guarantee and do nol

ROMAN TORO & CO-, CSP Cenified Publi. Accountants akrl Business Cone tants
PO BOX 3043 yAUCO PR 00698.3A$ . TEL. (787) 856.622A FAX: (787) 8s6-6233
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPOBTING
AND ON COMPLIA}ICE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEIIENTS PERFORMED IN ACCOBDANCE WIIH GOVERNMENT AUDINNG STANDARDS

Honorable Mayorand Member of lhe
l\.lunicipal Assembly
ll4unicipality ol San Sebaslidn, Puerto Bico

We have audited the ,inancial stalements ol the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining lund inlomation o, Municipality ol San Sebastien, Puerto Rico as ol and lor the
year ended June 30, 2012, which colleclively comprise Municipality ol San Sebadian, Puerlo Rico's basic financial
slatemenis and have issued our repod thereon daled January 28, 2013. We conducted our audil in accordance with
auditing slandards generally accepted in the L.lniled Slates ol America and the standards applicable to linancial
audils contained in Goyemnenl Audiling Slandads, tssued by the Complroller Generalolthe United States.

lnternal Conlrol Over Financial Reponing

Managemenl of ltlunicipality ol San Sebastian, Puerto Rico, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal conirol over linancial reporting. ln planning and perlorming our audil, we considered Municipality ol San
Sebastidn, Puedo Eico's intemal control over linancial repoding as a basis ror designing our auditing procedures for
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial slatemenls, bul nol for the purpose ol expressing an opinion
on the ellecliveness ol ltiunicipality ol San Sebasffn, Puedo Bico's inlemal control over linancial reporting.
Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on lhe eflectiveness of the Municipality ol San Sebadien, Puerlo Rico's
inlemal conlrol over linancial reporling.

A deliciency in intemal contol exisls when the design or operalion of a conlrol does nol allow managemeni or
employees, in the nomal cource of performing lheir assigned functions, to prevenl, or detect and correct
misstalements on a timely basis. A matetial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deliciencies, in intemal
conlrolsuch lhal lhere is a reasonable possibility thal a mateial misslalemenl of the entity's linancial slatements will
not be prevenled, ordelected and corrected on a tjmely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over iinancial reporting was lor the limited pupose described in the iirst
paragraph and was nol designed to identily all deliciencies in intemal control over financial repoding lhat might be
deliciencies, significanl deficiencies or malerial weaknesses. We did not identify any deliciencies in internal control
overlinancial repofing thal we considerto be material weaknesses, as delined previously.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part ol obtaining reasonable assutance about whether [,lunicipality of San Sebaslian, puerto Rico's linancial
statements are lree of material misstalemenl, we perlomed tests ol its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulalions, contracls, and gant agreemenis, noncompliance wilh which could have a direct and malerial eflect on
the determination ol financial slatemenl amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance wilh lhose provisions
was not an objeclive ol our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results ol our lesls
disclosedno instances of noncompliance ot other mafleE thal are required lo be reporled undet Govennental
Auditing Standatds.

This reporl is intended solely for lhe inlormalion and use of management, others within the enlity, i,lunicipal
Assembly, and ledeal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone oiherthan these specified parlies.

'D -7- ..-={ / ,-- n z: / -,
BOMAN TOBO & CO,, CONTADORES

PUBLICOS AUTOHIZADOS, CSP
LICENSE #35.IN FOBCE

Yauco, Pueno Bico
January 28, 2013

Slamp # E46225 was atfixed to
the originalof lhis reporl

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenified Public Accou tants and Busi\ess Consultants
PO ROX 1043 YAUCO PR 00698-3U3 . TEL (787)856-6220 FAX: (787)856.6233
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOBT ON COMPLIANCE WTH REoUIREIiIENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND TIATERIAL EFFECTON EACH MAJOB PBOGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROLOVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCOBDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A.133

Honorable Mayor and Memberof lhe
Municipal Assembly

It4unicipality of San Sebaslidn, Pue(o Bico

Compliance

We have audited Municipality ol San Sebastien, Puedo Rico's compliance, with the types oJ compliance
requiremenls described in lhe OMB Ciculat A-133 Compliance Suwlened,lhal could have a direct and material

etlect on each ol l,{unicipalily ol San Sebastien, Puerlo Rico's major federal programs for lhe ye ended June 30,
20l2.Municipality ol San Sebasti6rn, Puerlo Rico's major lederal programs are idenlilied in lhe summary of auditor's

results seclion of the accompanying schedule ol findings and questioned cosls. Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulalions, contracls, and granls applicable to each ol ils maior federal programs is the responsibility ol
Municipality ol San Sebastien's management. our responsibilily is lo express an opinion on Municipality ol San

Sebastidn's compliance based on ouraudii.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales
ol Amedca; the standards applicable to linancial audits contained in Goyemment /quditing Standards, issued by lhe
Complroller General ol the United Slates and OMB Ciculat A-133, Audits ol States, Local Govemnents, and l,lon-
Prolit Organizations. fhose slandards and OMB Circular /q-133 require lhat we plan and perlom ihe audil to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types ol compliance requiremenls relened to above

that could have a direct and material ellecl on a major lederal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a

test basis, evidence aboul Municipality of San Sebastien, Puerlo Rico's compliance wilh lhose requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in lhe circumstances. We believe thal our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does nol provide a legal delemination ol l\,lunicipalily of San

Sebasten, Puerto Hico's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, Municipality ol San Sebasiian, Puerto Rico, complied, in all material respecls, with the compliance
requirements relered to above thal could have a direct and maledal elfect on each ol its major lederal programs lor
the year ended June 30,2012.
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lnternal Control Over Compliance

lranagemenl ol Municipality of San Sebastien, Puerlo Rico, is responsible lor establishing and maintaining ellective
inlemal conlrol over compliance wilh the requirements of laws, regulations, contracls, and grants applicable to
,ederal programs. ln planning and performing our audit, we considered ltlunicipality of San Sebastien, Puerto Rico's
internal conlrol over compliance wilh the requirements that could have a direcl and maledal eflect on a major fedelal
program to detemine lhe auditing procedures lor the pupose ol expressing our opinion on compliance and lo test
and report on inlemal control over compliance in accordance with OltlB Circular A-133, but nol lor the pupose ol
expressing an opinion on the etlectiveness ol internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do nol express an
opinion on the eflectiveness olMunicipality of San Sebasli6n, Puerto Rico's inlemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in inlenal control over compliance exisls when lhe design or operation ol a control over compliance
does nol allow management or employees, in the normal course of perlorming lheir assigned functions, to prevent, or
detecl and correcl, noncompliance wiih a type ol compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
nateial weakness in intemal conlrol over compliance is a deficiency, or combinalion ol deficiencies, in intemal
conlrol over compliance, such lhat there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type ol
compliance requiremenl ol a federalprogram willnot be prevented, or delected and corrected, on alimely basis.

Our consideration ol internal control over compliance was tor the limited pupose descdbed in the preceding
paragraph and was nol designed 10 ideniify all deliciencies in intemal conlrol over compliance thal might be
,ignificant deficiencies ot nateial weaknesses. We did not idenlified any deliciencies in intemal control over
compliance thal we considet lo be a nateialweaknesg as delined above.

This report is intended solely for the inlormation and use ol management, l\,lunicipal Assembly, otheE within lhe
entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through enlilies and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone olherthan these specilied parties. '> --7- ./.

/'
/ROMAN TOBO E CO,, CONTADORES

PUBLICOS AUTOBIZAODS, CSP

LICENSE #35 . IN FORCE

Yauco, Puerto Bico
January 28,2013

Slamp # E46226 was alfixed to
the originalof this report
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO_ MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ETIDED JUNE 30,20,I2

SECTION I-SUMMABY OF AUDITOHS' EESUL]S

- Financial Siatements

_ 
Type ol audilols repoi issuedr E Urqua ified Opinion fl euaitiedopinion

E Adverseopinior E Disctaimeropin on

nle nal control ove r lif anclal rc porling

Signilicant conlro delic ency iderlil ed?

. Malerialweakness (esl idenlii ed?

Noncomplance male al lo linanc al slalem€nts noled?

FederalAvads

lnlemal control over rnator programsl

S gnilcanl control deliciency ideni,ied?

. Maleialweakness(es)idenllied?

Type of audilor's repori ssued oncomplancelor

- MaiorPrograms:

- Any audillinding disclosed lhalar€ required lo be repo(ed
rn accodancev/ilh Seclion 510(a) ol C rcul A-133?

- denlilicalion oi Major Programs:

! ves

! ves

Ev*

I ves

I tlone reportea

8ru"
Er"

CFDANUmb€r

10.415

- 14.195
14218
14257
14_871

- 93575i93.713
93600;93.708

Do lar thresho d used to dislngu sh belween

- TypeAandType B Programs:

Rumi Rental Hous ng Loan

Seclion 8 Housing Assrslance Payrnenls
Communily Developmenl Block Granl - Enlillemenl Granls
ABRA- Homelessness Prevent on and Rapld Re-Housing ProEam
Seclion 8 Housing Choice Voucherc Program
Child Care and oevelopmenl Elock Ganl Clusler
Head Slarl Programs Cllsler

$300000

Ev* EmAudilee q ua ilied as low. dsk aud itee ?

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

No findings are reported.
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liame o{ Federal Program or Clusler



COfillilOl{WEALTH OF PUEBTO nlCO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED cosTs (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

SECTIOI III- FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS

No lindings are reported.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenfied Publit Accoutiants and B siness Cons hafis
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